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Preferred Stock. The Company is authorized to issue 30 million shares of preferred stock and the Company’s
preferred stock outstanding consisted of the following:

Shares
Outstanding at
December 31,

2013

Liquidation
Preference
per Share

Carrying Value

Series

At
December 31,

2013

At
December 31,

2012

(dollars in millions)

A . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44,000 $25,000 $1,100 $1,100
C . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 519,882 1,000 408 408
E . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34,500 25,000 862 —
F . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34,000 25,000 850 —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,220 $1,508

The Company’s preferred stock qualifies as Tier 1 capital in accordance with regulatory capital requirements (see
Note 14).

Series A Preferred Stock. In July 2006, the Company issued 44,000,000 Depositary Shares in an aggregate
of $1,100 million. Each Depositary Share represents 1/1,000th of a Share of Floating Rate Non-Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series A, $0.01 par value (“Series A Preferred Stock”). The Series A Preferred Stock is
redeemable at the Company’s option, in whole or in part, on or after July 15, 2011 at a redemption price of
$25,000 per share (equivalent to $25.00 per Depositary Share). The Series A Preferred Stock also has a
preference over the Company’s common stock upon liquidation. In December 2013, the Company declared a
quarterly dividend of $255.56 per share of Series A Preferred Stock that was paid on January 15, 2014 to
preferred shareholders of record on December 31, 2013.

Series B and Series C Preferred Stock. On October 13, 2008, the Company issued to MUFG 7,839,209 shares
of Series B Preferred Stock and 1,160,791 shares of Series C Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of
$9 billion.

The Series C Preferred Stock is redeemable by the Company, in whole or in part, on or after October 15, 2011 at
a redemption price of $1,100 per share. Dividends on the Series C Preferred Stock are payable, on a non-
cumulative basis, as and if declared by the Board of Directors of the Company, in cash, at the rate of 10% per
annum of the liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. In December 2013, the Company declared a quarterly
dividend of $25.00 per share of Series C Preferred Stock that was paid on January 15, 2014 to preferred
shareholders of record on December 31, 2013.

The $9 billion in proceeds was allocated to the Series B Preferred Stock and the Series C Preferred Stock based
on their relative fair values at issuance (approximately $8.1 billion was allocated to the Series B Preferred Stock
and approximately $0.9 billion to the Series C Preferred Stock). Upon redemption by the Company, the excess of
the redemption value of $1,100 per share over the carrying value of the Series C Preferred Stock ($0.9 billion
allocated at inception or approximately $784 per share) will be charged to Retained earnings (i.e., treated in a
manner similar to the treatment of dividends paid). The amount charged to Retained earnings will be deducted
from the numerator in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share during the related reporting period in
which the Series C Preferred Stock is redeemed by the Company (see Note 16 for additional details).

During 2009, 640,909 shares of the Series C Preferred Stock were redeemed with an aggregate price equal to the
aggregate price exchanged by MUFG for approximately $0.7 billion of common stock.
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During 2011, the Company and MUFG completed the conversion of MUFG Series B Preferred Stock (see
“MUFG Stock Conversion” above).

Series E Preferred Stock. On September 30, 2013, the Company issued 34,500,000 Depositary Shares, for an
aggregate price of $862 million. Each Depositary Share represents a 1/1,000th interest in a share of perpetual
Series E Fixed-to-Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value (“Series E Preferred Stock”).
The Series E Preferred Stock is redeemable at the Company’s option, (i) in whole or in part, from time to time,
on any dividend payment date on or after October 15, 2023 or (ii) in whole but not in part at any time within 90
days following a regulatory capital treatment event (as described in the terms of that series), in each case at a
redemption price of $25,000 per share (equivalent to $25.00 per Depository Share). The Series E Preferred Stock
also has a preference over the Company’s common stock upon liquidation. The Series E Preferred Stock offering
(net of related issuance costs) resulted in proceeds of approximately $854 million. In December 2013, the
Company declared a quarterly dividend of $519.53 per share of Series E Preferred Stock that was paid on
January 15, 2014 to preferred shareholders of record on December 31, 2013.

Series F Preferred Stock. On December 10, 2013, the Company issued 34,000,000 Depositary Shares, for an
aggregate price of $850 million. Each Depositary Share represents a 1/1,000th interest in a share of perpetual
Series F Fixed-to-Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value (“Series F Preferred Stock”).
The Series F Preferred Stock is redeemable at the Company’s option, (i) in whole or in part, from time to time,
on any dividend payment date on or after January 15, 2024 or (ii) in whole but not in part at any time within 90
days following a regulatory capital treatment event (as described in the terms of that series), in each case at a
redemption price of $25,000 per share (equivalent to $25.00 per Depositary Share). The Series F Preferred Stock
also has a preference over the Company’s common stock upon liquidation. The Series F Preferred Stock offering
(net of related issuance costs) resulted in proceeds of approximately $842 million. In December 2013, the
Company declared the initial quarterly dividend of $167.10 per share of Series F Preferred Stock that was paid on
January 15, 2014 to preferred shareholders of record on December 31, 2013.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss.

The following table presents changes in AOCI by component, net of noncontrolling interests, in 2013 (dollars in
millions):

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments

Net
Change in
Cash Flow

Hedges

Change in
Net Unrealized

Gains (Losses) on
Securities

Available for Sale

Pension,
Postretirement

and Other Related
Adjustments Total

Balance at December 31, 2012 . . . . . . . . . $(123) $ (5) $ 151 $(539) $ (516)

Other comprehensive income (loss)
before reclassifications . . . . . . . . . (143) — (406) (16) (565)

Amounts reclassified from AOCI . . . — 4 (27) 11 (12)

Net other comprehensive income (loss)
during the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (143) 4 (433) (5) (577)

Balance at December 31, 2013 . . . . . . . . . $(266) $ (1) $(282) $(544) $(1,093)

The Company had no significant reclassifications out of AOCI for 2013.
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Cumulative Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments. Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments
include gains or losses resulting from translating foreign currency financial statements from their respective
functional currencies to U.S. dollars, net of hedge gains or losses and related tax effects. The Company uses
foreign currency contracts to manage the currency exposure relating to its net investments in non-U.S. dollar
functional currency subsidiaries. Increases or decreases in the value of the Company’s net foreign investments
generally are tax deferred for U.S. purposes, but the related hedge gains and losses are taxable currently. The
Company attempts to protect its net book value from the effects of fluctuations in currency exchange rates on its
net investments in non-U.S. dollar subsidiaries by selling the appropriate non-U.S. dollar currency in the forward
market. Under some circumstances, however, the Company may elect not to hedge its net investments in certain
foreign operations due to market conditions, including the availability of various currency contracts at acceptable
costs. Information at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 relating to the effects on cumulative foreign
currency translation adjustments resulting from translation of foreign currency financial statements and from
gains and losses from hedges of the Company’s net investments in non-U.S. dollar functional currency
subsidiaries is summarized below:

At
December 31,

2013

At
December 31,

2012

(dollars in millions)

Net investments in non-U.S. dollar functional currency subsidiaries subject to
hedges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,708 $13,811

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments resulting from net investments
in subsidiaries with a non-U.S. dollar functional currency . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (259) $ 348

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments resulting from realized or
unrealized losses on hedges, net of tax(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7) (471)

Total cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (266) $ (123)

(1) A gain of $77 million, net of tax, related to net investment hedges was reclassified from other comprehensive income into income during
2012. The amount primarily related to the reversal of amounts recorded in cumulative other comprehensive income due to the incorrect
application of hedge accounting on certain derivative contracts (see Note 12 for further information).

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interests.

Changes in nonredeemable noncontrolling interests in 2013 primarily resulted from distributions related to
MSMS of $292 million and a real estate fund of $214 million. In September 2012, the Company reclassified
approximately $4.3 billion from nonredeemable noncontrolling interests to redeemable noncontrolling interests
for Citi’s remaining 35% interest in the Wealth Management JV (see Note 3). Changes in nonredeemable
noncontrolling interests in 2012 also included distributions related to MSMS of $151 million.
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16. Earnings per Common Share.

Basic EPS is computed by dividing earnings (loss) applicable to Morgan Stanley common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Common shares outstanding include
common stock and vested RSUs where recipients have satisfied either the explicit vesting terms or retirement
eligibility requirements. Diluted EPS reflects the assumed conversion of all dilutive securities. The Company
calculates EPS using the two-class method and determines whether instruments granted in share-based payment
transactions are participating securities (see Note 2). The following table presents the calculation of basic and
diluted EPS (in millions, except for per share data):

2013 2012 2011

Basic EPS:
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,656 $ 757 $ 4,696
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (43) (41) (51)

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,613 716 4,645
Net income applicable to redeemable noncontrolling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 222 124 —
Net income applicable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests . . . . . . . . . . . 459 524 535

Net income applicable to Morgan Stanley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,932 68 4,110
Less: Preferred dividends (Series A Preferred Stock) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (44) (44) (44)
Less: Preferred dividends (Series B Preferred Stock) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (196)
Less: MUFG stock conversion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (1,726)
Less: Preferred dividends (Series C Preferred Stock) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (52) (52) (52)
Less: Preferred dividends (Series E Preferred Stock) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (18) — —
Less: Preferred dividends (Series F Preferred Stock) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) — —
Less: Wealth Management JV redemption value adjustment (see Note 3) . . . . . (151) — —
Less: Allocation of (earnings) loss to participating RSUs(1):

From continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) (2) (26)
From discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 1

Earnings (loss) applicable to Morgan Stanley common shareholders . . . . . . . . . $2,655 $ (30) $ 2,067

Weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,906 1,886 1,655

Earnings (loss) per basic common share:
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.42 $ 0.02 $ 1.28
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.03) (0.04) (0.03)

Earnings (loss) per basic common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.39 $ (0.02) $ 1.25

Diluted EPS:
Earnings (loss) applicable to Morgan Stanley common shareholders . . . . . . . . . $2,655 $ (30) $ 2,067
Weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,906 1,886 1,655
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and RSUs(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51 33 20

Weighted average common shares outstanding and common stock
equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,957 1,919 1,675

Earnings (loss) per diluted common share:
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.38 $ 0.02 $ 1.27
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.02) (0.04) (0.04)

Earnings (loss) per diluted common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.36 $ (0.02) $ 1.23

(1) RSUs that are considered participating securities participate in all of the earnings of the Company in the computation of basic EPS, and,
therefore, such RSUs are not included as incremental shares in the diluted calculation.
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The following securities were considered antidilutive and, therefore, were excluded from the computation of
diluted EPS:

Number of Antidilutive Securities Outstanding at End of Period: 2013 2012 2011

(shares in millions)

RSUs and performance-based stock units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 8 21
Stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 42 57

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36 50 78

17. Interest Income and Interest Expense.

Details of Interest income and Interest expense were as follows:

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Interest income(1):
Trading assets(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,292 $2,736 $3,593
Securities available for sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 447 343 348
Loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,121 643 356
Interest bearing deposits with banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129 124 186
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell and

Securities borrowed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (20) 364 886
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,240 1,482 1,865

Total interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $5,209 $5,692 $7,234

Interest expense(1):
Deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 159 $ 181 $ 236
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 38 41
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,758 4,622 4,912
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and Securities loaned . . . . . . . . . 1,469 1,805 1,925
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (975) (749) (231)

Total interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,431 $5,897 $6,883

Net interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 778 $ (205) $ 351

(1) Interest income and expense are recorded within the consolidated statements of income depending on the nature of the instrument and
related market conventions. When interest is included as a component of the instrument’s fair value, interest is included within Trading
revenues or Investments revenues. Otherwise, it is included within Interest income or Interest expense.

(2) Interest expense on Trading liabilities is reported as a reduction to Interest income on Trading assets.

18. Deferred Compensation Plans.

The Company maintains various deferred compensation plans for the benefit of its employees. The two principal
forms of deferred compensation are granted under several stock-based compensation and cash-based
compensation plans.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans. The accounting guidance for stock-based compensation requires
measurement of compensation cost for stock-based awards at fair value and recognition of compensation cost
over the service period, net of estimated forfeitures (see Note 2).
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The components of the Company’s stock-based compensation expense (net of cancellations) are presented below:

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Restricted stock units(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,140 $864 $1,057
Stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 4 24
Performance-based stock units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 29 32

Total(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,184 $897 $1,113

(1) Amounts for 2013, 2012 and 2011 include $25 million, $31 million and $186 million, respectively, related to stock-based awards that
were granted in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, to employees who satisfied retirement-eligible requirements under award terms that
do not contain a service period.

(2) Annual expense fluctuations are primarily due to the introduction in 2012 of a new vesting requirement for certain employees who satisfy
existing retirement-eligible requirements to provide a one-year advance notice of their intention to retire from the Company. As such,
expense recognition for these awards begins after the grant date (see Note 2).

The table above excludes stock-based compensation expense recorded in discontinued operations, which was
approximately $3 million in 2012. See Note 1 for additional information on discontinued operations.

The tax benefit related to stock-based compensation expense was $371 million, $306 million and $383 million
for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The tax benefit for stock-based compensation expense included in
discontinued operations was $1 million in 2012.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had $749 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested
stock-based awards. Absent estimated or actual forfeitures or cancellations, this amount of unrecognized
compensation cost will be recognized as $470 million in 2014, $205 million in 2015 and $74 million thereafter.
These amounts do not include 2013 performance year awards granted in January 2014, which will begin to be
amortized in 2014.

In connection with awards under its stock-based compensation plans, the Company is authorized to issue shares
of its common stock held in treasury or newly issued shares. At December 31, 2013, approximately 107 million
shares were available for future grant under these plans.

The Company generally uses treasury shares, if available, to deliver shares to employees and has an ongoing
repurchase authorization that includes repurchases in connection with awards granted under its stock-based
compensation plans. Share repurchases by the Company are subject to regulatory approval. See Note 15 for
additional information on the Company’s share repurchase program.

Restricted Stock Units. The Company has granted restricted stock unit awards pursuant to several stock-based
compensation plans. The plans provide for the deferral of a portion of certain employees’ incentive compensation
with awards made in the form of restricted common stock or in the right to receive unrestricted shares of
common stock in the future. Awards under these plans are generally subject to vesting over time contingent upon
continued employment and to restrictions on sale, transfer or assignment until the end of a specified period,
generally one to three years from the date of grant. All or a portion of an award may be canceled if employment
is terminated before the end of the relevant restriction period. All or a portion of a vested award also may be
canceled in certain limited situations, including termination for cause during the relevant restriction period.
Recipients of stock-based awards may have voting rights, at the Company’s discretion, and generally receive
dividend equivalents.

253



MORGAN STANLEY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The following table sets forth activity relating to the Company’s vested and unvested RSUs (share data in
millions):

2013

Number of
Shares

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Value

RSUs at beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122 $24.29
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57 22.72
Conversions to common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (41) 28.51
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) 22.21

RSUs at end of period(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 132 $22.41

(1) At December 31, 2013, approximately 121 million RSUs with a weighted average grant date fair value of $22.47 were vested or
expected to vest.

The weighted average price for RSUs granted during 2012 and 2011 was $18.09 and $28.94, respectively. At
December 31, 2013, the weighted average remaining term until delivery for the Company’s outstanding RSUs
was approximately 1.3 years.

At December 31, 2013, the intrinsic value of outstanding RSUs was $4,130 million.

The total fair market value of RSUs converted to common stock during 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $939 million,
$660 million and $935 million, respectively.

The following table sets forth activity relating to the Company’s unvested RSUs (share data in millions):

2013

Number of
Shares

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Value

Unvested RSUs at beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 83 $23.83
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57 22.72
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (36) 26.67
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) 22.19

Unvested RSUs at end of period(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 98 $22.29

(1) Unvested RSUs represent awards where recipients have yet to satisfy either the explicit vesting terms or retirement-eligible requirements.
At December 31, 2013, approximately 87 million unvested RSUs with a weighted average grant date fair value of $22.35 were expected
to vest.

The aggregate fair value of awards that vested during 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $842 million, $753 million and
$870 million, respectively.

Stock Options. The Company has granted stock option awards pursuant to several stock-based compensation
plans. The plans provide for the deferral of a portion of certain key employees’ incentive compensation with awards
made in the form of stock options generally having an exercise price not less than the fair value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. Such stock option awards generally become exercisable over a three-year period
and expire five to 10 years from the date of grant, subject to accelerated expiration upon termination of

254



MORGAN STANLEY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

employment. Stock option awards have vesting, restriction and cancellation provisions that are generally similar to
those in restricted stock units. The weighted average fair value of the Company’s options granted during 2013 and
2011 were $5.41 and $8.24, respectively, utilizing the following weighted average assumptions:

Grant Year
Risk-Free Interest

Rate Expected Life
Expected Stock
Price Volatility

Expected Dividend
Yield

2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.6% 3.9 years 32.0% 0.9%
2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.1% 5.0 years 32.7% 1.5%

No options were granted during 2012.

The Company’s expected option life has been determined based upon historical experience. The expected stock
price volatility assumption was determined using the implied volatility of exchange-traded options, in accordance
with accounting guidance for share-based payments. The risk-free interest rate was determined based on the
yields available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues.

The following table sets forth activity relating to the Company’s stock options (options data in millions):

2013

Number of
Options

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Options outstanding at beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 $48.37
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 22.98
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12) 39.93

Options outstanding at end of period(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 49.40

Options exercisable at end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 52.09

(1) At December 31, 2013, approximately 30 million options with a weighted average exercise price of $51.50 were vested.

There were no stock options exercised during 2013, 2012 or 2011. At December 31, 2013, the intrinsic value of
in-the-money exercisable stock options was $7 million.

The following table presents information relating to the Company’s stock options outstanding at December 31,
2013 (options data in millions):

At December 31, 2013 Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices
Number

Outstanding
Weighted Average

Exercise Price

Average
Remaining Life

(Years)
Number

Exercisable
Weighted Average

Exercise Price

Average
Remaining Life

(Years)

$22.00 – $39.99 6 $26.88 4.0 3 $28.94 4.0
$40.00 – $49.99 15 46.51 0.2 15 46.51 0.2
$50.00 – $59.99 1 52.08 2.0 1 52.08 2.0
$60.00 – $76.99 11 66.75 2.9 11 66.75 2.9

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 30

Performance-Based Stock Units. The Company has granted PSUs to certain senior executives. These PSUs
will vest and convert to shares of common stock at the end of the performance period only if the Company
satisfies predetermined performance and market goals over the three-year performance period that began on
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January 1 of the grant year and ends three years later on December 31. Under the terms of the grant, the number
of PSUs that will actually vest and convert to shares will be based on the extent to which the Company achieves
the specified performance goals during the performance period. Performance-based stock unit awards have
vesting, restriction and cancellation provisions that are generally similar to those in restricted stock units.

One-half of the award will be earned based on the Company’s return on average common shareholders’ equity,
excluding the impact of the fluctuation in the Company’s credit spreads and other credit factors for certain of the
Company’s long-term and short-term borrowings, primarily structured notes, that are accounted for at fair value
(“MS Average ROE”). For PSUs granted after 2011, the MS Average ROE also excludes certain gains or losses
associated with the sale of specified businesses, specified goodwill impairments, certain gains or losses
associated with specified legal settlements related to business activities conducted prior to January 1, 2011 and
specified cumulative catch-up adjustments resulting from changes in an existing, or application of a new,
accounting principle that is not applied on a fully retrospective basis. The number of PSUs ultimately earned for
this portion of the awards will be applied by a multiplier as follows:

Minimum Maximum

Grant Year MS Average ROE Multiplier MS Average ROE Multiplier

2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Less than 5% 0.0 13% or more 2.0
2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Less than 6% 0.0 12% or more 1.5
2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Less than 7.5% 0.0 18% or more 2.0

The fair value per share of this portion of the award for 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $22.85, $18.16 and $29.89,
respectively.

One-half of the award will be earned based on the Company’s total shareholder return (“TSR”), relative to the
S&P Financial Sectors Index (for the 2013 and 2012 awards) and to members of a comparison peer group (for the
2011 award). The number of PSUs ultimately earned for this portion of the awards will be applied by a multiplier
as follows:

Minimum Maximum

Year Metrics TSR Multiplier TSR Multiplier

2013 Comparison of TSR Below Down to 0.0 Above Up to 2.0
2012 Comparison of TSR Below Down to 0.0 Above Up to 1.5
2011 Ranking within the comparison group Rank 9 or 10 0.0 Rank 1 2.0

The fair value per share of this portion of the award for 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $34.65, $20.42 and $43.14,
respectively, estimated on the date of grant using a Monte Carlo simulation and the following assumptions:

Grant Year
Risk-Free Interest

Rate
Expected Stock
Price Volatility

Expected Dividend
Yield

2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.4% 45.4% 0.0%
2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.4% 56.0% 1.1%
2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.0% 89.0% 1.5%
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Because the payout depends on the Company’s total shareholder return relative to a comparison group, the
valuation also depended on the performance of the stocks in the comparison group as well as estimates of the
correlations among their performance. The expected stock price volatility assumption was determined using
historical volatility because correlation coefficients can only be developed through historical volatility. The
expected dividend yield was based on historical dividend payments. The risk-free interest rate was determined
based on the yields available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues.

2013

Number of Shares

(in millions)

PSUs at beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2)

PSUs at end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation Plans. The Company maintains various deferred cash-based
compensation plans for the benefit of certain current and former employees that provide a return to the plan
participants based upon the performance of various referenced investments. The Company often invests directly,
as a principal, in investments or other financial instruments to economically hedge its obligations under its
deferred cash-based compensation plans. Changes in value of such investments made by the Company are
recorded in Trading revenues and Investments revenues.

The components of the Company’s deferred compensation expense (net of cancellations) are presented below:

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Deferred cash-based awards(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,490 $1,815 $1,809
Return on referenced investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 772 435 132

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,262 $2,250 $1,941

(1) Amounts for 2013, 2012 and 2011 include $78 million, $93 million and $113 million, respectively, related to deferred cash-based awards
that were granted in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, to employees who satisfied retirement-eligible requirements under award terms
that do not contain a service period.

The table above excludes deferred cash-based compensation expense recorded in discontinued operations, which
was approximately $7 million in 2012 and $7 million in 2011. See Note 1 for additional information on
discontinued operations.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had approximately $672 million of unrecognized compensation cost related
to unvested deferred cash-based awards (excluding unrecognized expense for returns on referenced investments).
Absent actual cancellations and any future return on referenced investments, this amount of unrecognized
compensation cost will be recognized as $361 million in 2014, $162 million in 2015 and $149 million thereafter.
These amounts do not include 2013 performance year awards granted in January 2014, which will begin to be
amortized in 2014.
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2013 Performance Year Deferred Compensation Awards. In January 2014, the Company granted
approximately $1.2 billion of stock-based awards and $1.4 billion of deferred cash-based awards related to the
2013 performance year that contain a future service requirement. Absent estimated or actual forfeitures or
cancellations or accelerations, and any future return on referenced investments, the annual compensation cost for
these awards will be recognized as follows:

2014 2015 Thereafter Total

(dollars in millions)

Stock-based awards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 749 $309 $169 $1,227
Deferred cash-based awards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 990 259 142 1,391

$1,739 $568 $311 $2,618

19. Employee Benefit Plans.

The Company sponsors various pension plans for the majority of its U.S. and non-U.S. employees. The Company
provides certain other postretirement benefits, primarily health care and life insurance, to eligible U.S.
employees. The Company also provides certain postemployment benefits to certain former employees or inactive
employees prior to retirement.

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. Substantially all of the U.S. employees of the Company and its U.S.
affiliates who were hired before July 1, 2007 are covered by the U.S. pension plan, a non-contributory, defined
benefit pension plan that is qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “U.S. Qualified
Plan”). Unfunded supplementary plans (the “Supplemental Plans”) cover certain executives. In addition, certain
of the Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries also have defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all of their
employees. These pension plans generally provide pension benefits that are based on each employee’s years of
credited service and on compensation levels specified in the plans. The Company’s policy is to fund at least the
amounts sufficient to meet minimum funding requirements under applicable employee benefit and tax laws.
Liabilities for benefits payable under the Supplemental Plans are accrued by the Company and are funded when
paid to the participants and beneficiaries. The Company’s U.S. Qualified Plan ceased future benefit accruals after
December 31, 2010.

The Company also has an unfunded postretirement benefit plan that provides medical and life insurance for
eligible U.S. retirees and medical insurance for their dependents.

Net Periodic Benefit Expense.

The following table presents the components of the net periodic benefit expense (income) for 2013, 2012 and
2011:

Pension Postretirement

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Service cost, benefits earned during the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 23 $ 26 $ 27 $ 4 $ 4 $ 4
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 151 156 158 7 7 8
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (114) (110) (131) — — —
Net amortization of prior service cost (credit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — (13) (14) (14)
Net amortization of actuarial loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36 27 17 3 2 2
Settlement loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 — 1 — — —

Net periodic benefit expense (income) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 97 $ 99 $ 72 $ 1 $ (1) $—
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Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive loss (income) on a pre-
tax basis in 2013, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

Pension Postretirement

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Net loss (gain) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 87 $416 $(401) $ (52) $ 16 $ (5)
Prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3 2 — — —
Amortization of prior service credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 13 14 14
Amortization of net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (37) (27) (18) (3) (2) (2)

Total recognized in other comprehensive loss (income) . . . . . . . . . . $ 53 $392 $(417) $ (42) $ 28 $ 7

The Company, for most plans, amortizes (as a component of net periodic benefit expense) unrecognized net gains
and losses over the average future service of active participants to the extent that the gain (loss) exceeds 10% of
the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market-related value of plan assets. Effective January 1,
2011, the U.S. Qualified Plan amortizes the unrecognized net gains and losses using the average life expectancy
of participants.

The following table presents the weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit expense
for 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Pension Postretirement

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.95% 4.57% 5.44% 3.88% 4.56% 5.41%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.73 3.78 4.78 N/A N/A N/A
Rate of future compensation increases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.98 2.14 2.28 N/A N/A N/A

N/A—Not Applicable.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets represents the Company’s best estimate of the long-term
return on plan assets. For the U.S. Qualified Plan, the expected long-term rate of return was estimated by
computing a weighted average return of the underlying long-term expected returns on the plan’s fixed income
assets based on the investment managers’ target allocations within this asset class. The expected long-term return
on assets is a long-term assumption that generally is expected to remain the same from one year to the next
unless there is a significant change in the target asset allocation, the fees and expenses paid by the plan or market
conditions. The U.S. Qualified Plan is 100% invested in fixed income securities and related derivative
instruments, including interest rate swap contracts. This asset allocation is expected to help protect the plan’s
funded status and limit volatility of the Company’s contributions. Total U.S. Qualified Plan investment portfolio
performance is assessed by comparing actual investment performance to changes in the estimated present value
of the U.S. Qualified Plan’s benefit obligation.
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Benefit Obligations and Funded Status.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets
for 2013 and 2012:

Pension Postretirement

(dollars in millions)

Reconciliation of benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at December 31, 2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,517 $154
Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 4
Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 156 7
Actuarial loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 405 15
Plan settlements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2) —
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (147) (6)
Other, including foreign currency exchange rate changes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (72) —

Benefit obligation at December 31, 2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,883 $174
Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 4
Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 151 7
Actuarial gain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (537) (52)
Plan amendments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 —
Plan settlements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7) —
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (186) (6)
Other, including foreign currency exchange rate changes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1

Benefit obligation at December 31, 2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,330 $128

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,604 $—
Actual return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 83 —
Employer contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 6
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (147) (6)
Plan settlements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2) —
Other, including foreign currency exchange rate changes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (61) —

Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,519 $—
Actual return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (512) —
Employer contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 6
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (186) (6)
Plan settlements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7) —
Other, including foreign currency exchange rate changes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 —

Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,867 $—
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The following table presents a summary of the funded status at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

Pension Postretirement

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

(dollars in millions)

Funded (unfunded) status . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(463) $(364) $(128) $(174)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of
financial condition consist of:

Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 60 $ 97 $ — $ —
Liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (523) (461) (128) (174)

Net amount recognized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(463) $(364) $(128) $(174)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss consist of:

Prior-service cost (credit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1 $ (2) $ (11) $ (24)
Net loss (gain) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 871 821 (14) 41

Net loss (gain) recognized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 872 $ 819 $ (25) $ 17

The estimated prior-service cost (credit) that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into
net periodic benefit expense over 2014 is $11 million for postretirement plans. The estimated net loss that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit expense over 2014 is
approximately $21 million for defined benefit pension plans.

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $3,309 million and $3,858 million
at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

The following table contains information for pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of the fair
value of plan assets at period-end:

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

(dollars in millions)

Projected benefit obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,127 $552
Fair value of plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,603 90

The following table contains information for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of the
fair value of plan assets at period-end:

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

(dollars in millions)

Accumulated benefit obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,089 $527
Fair value of plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,586 90
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The following table presents the weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at period-
end:

Pension Postretirement

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

Discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.74% 3.95% 4.75% 3.88%
Rate of future compensation increase . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.06 0.98 N/A N/A

N/A—Not Applicable.

The discount rates used to determine the benefit obligations for the U.S. pension, U.S. postretirement and the
U.K. pension plans’ liabilities were selected by the Company, in consultation with its independent actuaries,
using a pension discount yield curve based on the characteristics of the plans, each determined independently.
The pension discount yield curve represents spot discount yields based on duration implicit in a representative
broad-based Aa rated corporate bond universe of high-quality fixed income investments. For all other non-U.S.
pension plans, the Company set the assumed discount rates based on the nature of liabilities, local economic
environments and available bond indices.

The following table presents assumed health care cost trend rates used to determine the U.S. postretirement
benefit obligations at period-end:

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year:
Medical . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.90-7.38% 6.93-7.53%
Prescription . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8.25% 8.66%

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (ultimate trend rate) . . . . . . . . 4.50% 4.50%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2029 2029

Assumed health care cost trend rates can have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the Company’s
postretirement benefit plan. A one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have
the following effects:

One-Percentage
Point Increase

One-Percentage
Point (Decrease)

(dollars in millions)

Effect on total postretirement service and interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2 $ (1)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 (11)

No impact of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 has been reflected in
the Company’s consolidated statements of income as Medicare prescription drug coverage was deemed to have
no material effect on the Company’s postretirement benefit plan.

Plan Assets. The U.S. Qualified Plan assets represent 87% of the Company’s total pension plan assets. The
U.S. Qualified Plan uses a combination of active and risk-controlled fixed income investment strategies. The
fixed income asset allocation consists primarily of fixed income securities designed to approximate the expected
cash flows of the plan’s liabilities in order to help reduce plan exposure to interest rate variation and to better
align assets with obligations. The longer duration fixed income allocation is expected to help protect the plan’s
funded status and maintain the stability of plan contributions over the long run.
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The allocation among investment managers of the Company’s U.S. Qualified Plan is reviewed by the Morgan
Stanley Retirement Plan Investment Committee (the “Investment Committee”) on a regular basis. When the
exposure to a given investment manager reaches a minimum or maximum allocation level, an asset allocation
review process is initiated, and the portfolio will be rebalanced toward the target allocation unless the Investment
Committee determines otherwise.

Derivative instruments are permitted in the U.S. Qualified Plan’s investment portfolio only to the extent that they
comply with all of the plan’s policy guidelines and are consistent with the plan’s risk and return objectives. In
addition, any investment in derivatives must meet the following conditions:

• Derivatives may be used only if they are deemed by the investment manager to be more attractive than a
similar direct investment in the underlying cash market or if the vehicle is being used to manage risk of
the portfolio.

• Derivatives may not be used in a speculative manner or to leverage the portfolio under any circumstances.

• Derivatives may not be used as short-term trading vehicles. The investment philosophy of the U.S.
Qualified Plan is that investment activity is undertaken for long-term investment rather than short-term
trading.

• Derivatives may be used in the management of the U.S. Qualified Plan’s portfolio only when their
possible effects can be quantified, shown to enhance the risk-return profile of the portfolio, and reported
in a meaningful and understandable manner.

As a fundamental operating principle, any restrictions on the underlying assets apply to a respective derivative
product. This includes percentage allocations and credit quality. Derivatives will be used solely for the purpose
of enhancing investment in the underlying assets and not to circumvent portfolio restrictions.

Plan assets are measured at fair value using valuation techniques that are consistent with the valuation techniques
applied to the Company’s major categories of assets and liabilities as described in Note 4. Quoted market prices
in active markets are the best evidence of fair value and are used as the basis for the measurement, if available. If
a quoted market price is available, the fair value is the product of the number of trading units multiplied by the
market price. If a quoted market price is not available, the estimate of fair value is based on the valuation
approaches that maximize use of observable inputs and minimize use of unobservable inputs.

The fair value of OTC derivative contracts is derived primarily using pricing models, which may require multiple
market input parameters. Derivative contracts are presented on a gross basis prior to cash collateral or
counterparty netting. Derivatives consist of investments in interest rate swap contracts and are categorized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Commingled trust funds are privately offered funds available to institutional clients that are regulated, supervised
and subject to periodic examination by a U.S. federal or state agency. The trust must be maintained for the
collective investment or reinvestment of assets contributed to it from employee benefit plans maintained by more
than one employer or a controlled group of corporations. The sponsor of the commingled trust funds values the
funds’ NAV based on the fair value of the underlying securities. The underlying securities of the commingled
trust funds consist of mainly long-duration fixed income instruments. Commingled trust funds that are
redeemable at the measurement date or in the near future are categorized in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
otherwise they are categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Some non-U.S.-based plans hold foreign funds that consist of investments in foreign corporate equity funds,
foreign corporate bond funds, foreign target cash flow funds and foreign liquidity funds. Foreign corporate equity

263



MORGAN STANLEY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

funds and foreign corporate bond funds invest in individual securities quoted on a recognized stock exchange or
traded in a regulated market and certain bond funds that aim to produce returns as close as possible to certain
Financial Times Stock Exchange indexes. Foreign target cash flow funds are designed to provide a series of fixed
annual cash flows over five or 10 years achieved by investing in government bonds and derivatives. Foreign
liquidity funds place a high priority on capital preservation, stable value and a high liquidity of assets. Foreign
funds are generally categorized in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as they are readily redeemable at their
NAV. Corporate equity funds traded on a recognized exchange are categorized in Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Other investments held by non-U.S. based plans consist of real estate funds, hedge funds and insurance annuity
contracts. These real estate and hedge funds are categorized in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy to the extent
that they are readily redeemable at their NAV, otherwise they are categorized in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The insurance annuity contracts are valued based on the premium reserve of the insurer for a guarantee
that the insurer has given to the employee benefit plan that approximates fair value. The insurance annuity
contracts are categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents the fair value of the net pension plan assets at December 31, 2013. There were no
transfers between levels during 2013:

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs (Level 3) Total

(dollars in millions)
Assets:
Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 91 $ — $ — $ 91
U.S. government and agency securities:

U.S. Treasury securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,047 — — 1,047
U.S. agency securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 204 — 204

Total U.S. government and agency securities . . 1,047 204 — 1,251
Corporate and other debt:

State and municipal securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2 — 2
Collateralized debt obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 76 — 76

Total corporate and other debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 78 — 78
Derivative contracts(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 122 — 122
Derivative-related cash collateral receivable . . . . . . . — 37 — 37
Commingled trust funds(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,004 — 1,004
Foreign funds(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 291 — 312
Other investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 10 38 48

Total investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,159 1,746 38 2,943
Receivables:

Other receivables(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 20 — 20

Total receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 20 — 20

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,159 $1,766 $ 38 $2,963

Liabilities:
Derivative contracts(5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 92 $ — $ 92
Derivative-related cash collateral payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2 — 2
Other liabilities(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2 — 2

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 96 — 96

Net pension assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,159 $1,670 $ 38 $2,867
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(1) Cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and other liabilities are valued at their carrying value, which approximates fair value.
(2) Derivative contracts in an asset position consist of investments in interest rate swaps of $122 million.
(3) Commingled trust funds consist of investments in fixed income funds of $1,004 million.
(4) Foreign funds include investments in corporate bond funds, targeted cash flow funds, liquidity funds, corporate equity funds and

diversified funds of $157 million, $77 million, $56 million, $21 million and $1 million, respectively.
(5) Derivative contracts in a liability position consist of investments in interest rate swaps of $92 million.

The following table presents the fair value of the net pension plan assets at December 31, 2012. There were no
transfers between levels during 2012:

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets (Level 1)

Significant
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs (Level 3) Total

(dollars in millions)
Assets:
Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 80 $ — $ — $ 80
U.S. government and agency securities:

U.S. Treasury securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,354 — — 1,354
U.S. agency securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 241 — 241

Total U.S. government and agency securities . . . . 1,354 241 — 1,595
Corporate and other debt:

State and municipal securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2 — 2
Collateralized debt obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 71 — 71

Total corporate and other debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 73 — 73
Corporate equities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 — — 20
Derivative contracts(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 224 — 224
Derivative-related cash collateral receivable . . . . . . . . — 3 — 3
Commingled trust funds(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,275 — 1,275
Foreign funds(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 282 — 282
Other investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 11 30 41

Total investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,454 2,109 30 3,593
Receivables:

Other receivables(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 71 — 71

Total receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 71 — 71

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,454 $2,180 $ 30 $3,664

Liabilities:
Derivative contracts(5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 57 $ — $ 57
Derivative-related cash collateral payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 28 — 28
Other liabilities(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 60 — 60

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 145 — 145

Net pension assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,454 $2,035 $ 30 $3,519

(1) Cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and other liabilities are valued at their carrying value, which approximates fair value.
(2) Derivative contracts in an asset position consist of investments in interest rate swaps of $224 million.
(3) Commingled trust funds consist of investments in fixed income funds of $1,275 million.
(4) Foreign funds include investments in corporate bond funds, targeted cash flow funds, liquidity funds and diversified funds of $141

million, $85 million, $55 million and $1 million, respectively.
(5) Derivative contracts in a liability position consist of investments in interest rate swaps of $57 million.
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The following table presents changes in Level 3 pension assets measured at fair value for 2013:

Beginning
Balance at
January 1,

2013

Actual
Return on
Plan Assets
Related to
Assets Still

Held at
December 31,

2013

Actual
Return
on Plan

Assets Related
to Assets Sold
during 2013

Purchases,
Sales,
Other

Settlements
and Issuances,

net

Net Transfers
In and/or (Out)

of Level 3

Ending
Balance

at December 31,
2013

(dollars in millions)

Investments
Other investments . . . . . . . . $30 $2 $— $4 $2 $38

Total investments . . . . . $30 $2 $— $4 $2 $38

The following table presents changes in Level 3 pension assets measured at fair value for 2012:

Beginning
Balance at
January 1,

2012

Actual
Return on
Plan Assets
Related to
Assets Still

Held at
December 31,

2012

Actual Return
on Plan

Assets Related
to Assets Sold
during 2012

Purchases,
Sales,
Other

Settlements
and

Issuances,
net

Net Transfers
In and/or (Out)

of Level 3

Ending
Balance

at December 31,
2012

(dollars in millions)

Investments
Other investments . . . . . . . . . . $26 $— $— $4 $— $30

Total investments . . . . . . . . $26 $— $— $4 $— $30

Cash Flows.

At December 31, 2013, the Company expects to contribute approximately $50 million to its pension and
postretirement benefit plans in 2014 based upon the plans’ current funded status and expected asset return
assumptions for 2014, as applicable.

Expected benefit payments associated with the Company’s pension and postretirement benefit plans for the next
five years and in aggregate for the five years thereafter at December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Pension Postretirement

(dollars in millions)

2014 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $129 $ 6
2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128 6
2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 130 6
2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 138 7
2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 137 7
2019-2023 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 788 40

Morgan Stanley 401(k) Plan. U.S. employees meeting certain eligibility requirements may participate in the
Morgan Stanley 401(k) Plan. Eligible U.S. employees receive 401(k) matching cash contributions representing a
$1 for $1 Company match up to 4% of eligible pay, up to the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) limit. Matching
contributions for 2013 and 2012 were allocated according to participants’ current investment direction. Eligible
U.S. employees with eligible pay less than or equal to $100,000 also receive a fixed contribution under the
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401(k) Plan that equals 2% of eligible pay. A transition contribution is allocated to participants who received a
2010 accrual in the U.S. Qualified Plan or a 2010 retirement contribution in the 401(k) Plan and who met certain
age and service requirements as of December 31, 2010.

A separate transition contribution is allocated to certain eligible legacy Smith Barney employees. The Company
match, fixed contribution and transition contributions are included in the Company’s 401(k) expense. The pre-tax
401(k) expense for 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $242 million, $246 million and $257 million, respectively.

Defined Contribution Pension Plans. The Company maintains separate defined contribution pension plans that
cover substantially all employees of certain non-U.S. subsidiaries. Under such plans, benefits are determined
based on a fixed rate of base salary with certain vesting requirements. In 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s
expense related to these plans was $111 million, $126 million and $136 million, respectively.

Other Postemployment Benefits. Postemployment benefits may include, but are not limited to, salary
continuation, severance benefits, disability-related benefits, and continuation of health care and life insurance
coverage provided to former employees or inactive employees after employment but before retirement. The
postemployment benefit obligations were not material at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

20. Income Taxes.

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes from continuing operations consisted of:

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)
Current:

U.S. federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 153 $(178) $ 35
U.S. state and local . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 164 140 276
Non-U.S.:

United Kingdom . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 178 (16) 169
Japan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 88 90 19
Hong Kong . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36 16 (3)
Other(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 301 355 378

$ 920 $ 407 $ 874

Deferred:
U.S. federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (3) $(748) $ 508
U.S. state and local . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 (64) (49)
Non-U.S.:

United Kingdom . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (75) 77 32
Japan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 262 170 41
Hong Kong . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14) 35 27
Other(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (265) (114) (19)

$ (94) $(644) $ 540

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 826 $(237) $1,414

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (29) $ (7) $ (119)

(1) Results for 2013 Non-U.S. other jurisdictions included significant total tax provisions (benefits) of $59 million, $54 million, and $(156)
million from Brazil, India, and Luxembourg, respectively. Results for 2012 Non-U.S. other jurisdictions included significant total tax
provisions (benefits) of $43 million, $36 million, $36 million, $33 million, $32 million, and $(31) million from India, Brazil, Spain,
Canada, Singapore, and Netherlands, respectively. Results for 2011 Non-U.S. other jurisdictions included significant total tax provisions
of $98 million, $78 million, $68 million, and $27 million from Brazil, Netherlands, Spain, and India, respectively.
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The following table reconciles the provision for (benefit from) income taxes to the U.S. federal statutory income
tax rate:

2013 2012(1) 2011

U.S. federal statutory income tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
U.S. state and local income taxes, net of U.S. federal income tax benefits . . . . . . . . 2.4 8.6 2.6
Domestic tax credits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.3) (42.7) (3.9)
Tax exempt income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2.5) (29.9) (0.3)
Non-U.S. earnings:

Foreign Tax Rate Differential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6.1) (14.0) 0.7
Change in Reinvestment Assertion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.4) 4.8 (2.2)
Change in Foreign Tax Rates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.1 (0.3) 1.6

Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (7.3)
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.8) (7.1) (3.1)

Effective income tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.4% (45.6)% 23.1%

(1) 2012 percentages are reflective of the lower level of income from continuing operations before income taxes on a comparative basis due
to the change in the fair value of certain of the Company’s long-term and short-term borrowings resulting from fluctuations in its credit
spreads and other credit factors.

The Company’s effective tax rate from continuing operations for 2013 included an aggregate discrete net tax
benefit of $407 million. This included discrete tax benefits of: $161 million related to the remeasurement of
reserves and related interest associated with new information regarding the status of certain tax authority
examinations; $92 million related to the establishment of a previously unrecognized deferred tax asset from a
legal entity reorganization; $73 million that is attributable to tax planning strategies to optimize foreign tax credit
utilization as a result of the anticipated repatriation of earnings from certain non-U.S. subsidiaries; and $81
million due to the retroactive effective date of the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 (the “Relief Act”). The
Relief Act that was enacted on January 2, 2013, among other things, extended with retroactive effect to
January 1, 2012 a provision of U.S. tax law that defers the imposition of tax on certain active financial services
income of certain foreign subsidiaries earned outside the U.S. until such income is repatriated to the U.S. as a
dividend. Excluding the aggregate discrete net tax benefit noted above, the effective tax rate from continuing
operations in 2013 would have been 27.5%.

The Company’s effective tax rate from continuing operations for 2012 included an aggregate net tax benefit of
$142 million. This included a discrete tax benefit of $299 million related to the remeasurement of reserves and
related interest associated with either the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations or new information
regarding the status of certain IRS examinations and an aggregate out-of-period net tax provision of $157
million, to adjust the overstatement of deferred tax assets associated with partnership investments, principally in
the Company’s Investment Management business segment and repatriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries
recorded in prior years. The Company has evaluated the effects of the understatement of the income tax provision
both qualitatively and quantitatively and concluded that it did not have a material impact on any prior annual or
quarterly consolidated financial statements. Excluding the aggregate net tax benefit noted above, the effective tax
rate from continuing operations in 2012 would have been a benefit of 18.3%.

The Company’s effective tax rate from continuing operations for 2011 included an aggregate discrete net tax
benefit of $484 million. This included a $447 million discrete net tax benefit from the remeasurement of a
deferred tax asset and the reversal of a related valuation allowance. The deferred tax asset and valuation
allowance were recognized in income from discontinued operations in 2010 in connection with the recognition of
a $1.2 billion loss due to writedowns and related costs following the Company’s commitment to a plan to dispose
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of Revel. The Company recorded the valuation allowance because the Company did not believe it was more
likely than not that it would have sufficient future net capital gain to realize the benefit of the expected capital
loss to be recognized upon the disposal of Revel. During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the disposal of Revel
was restructured as a tax-free like kind exchange and the disposal was completed. The restructured transaction
changed the character of the future taxable loss to ordinary. The Company reversed the valuation allowance
because the Company believes it is more likely than not that it will have sufficient future ordinary taxable income
to recognize the recorded deferred tax asset. In accordance with the applicable accounting literature, this reversal
of a previously established valuation allowance due to a change in circumstances was recognized in income from
continuing operations during the quarter ended March 31, 2011. Additionally, in 2011 the Company recognized a
discrete tax benefit of $137 million related to the reversal of U.S. deferred tax liabilities associated with prior-
years’ undistributed earnings of certain non-U.S. subsidiaries that were determined to be indefinitely reinvested
abroad, and a discrete tax cost of $100 million related to the remeasurement of Japanese deferred tax assets as a
result of a decrease in the local statutory income tax rates starting in 2012. Excluding the aggregate net discrete
tax benefit noted above, the effective tax rate from continuing operations in 2011 would have been 31.0%.

The Company had $6,675 million and $7,191 million of cumulative earnings at December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively, attributable to foreign subsidiaries for which no U.S. provision has been
recorded for income tax that could occur upon repatriation. Except to the extent such earnings can be repatriated
tax efficiently, they are permanently invested abroad. Accordingly, $736 million and $719 million of deferred tax
liabilities were not recorded with respect to these earnings at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when
such differences are expected to reverse. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were as follows:

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

(dollars in millions)

Gross deferred tax assets:
Tax credits and loss carryforwards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $5,130 $6,193
Employee compensation and benefit plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,417 2,173
Valuation and liability allowances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,122 529
Valuation of inventory, investments and receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 418 —
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 158

Total deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,087 9,053
Valuation allowance(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38 48

Deferred tax assets after valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $9,049 $9,005

Gross deferred tax liabilities:
Non-U.S. operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,293 $1,253
Fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 275 115
Valuation of inventory, investments and receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 351
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 253 —

Total deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,821 $1,719

Net deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $7,228 $7,286

(1) The valuation allowance reduces the benefit of certain separate Company federal net operating loss and state capital loss carryforwards to
the amount that will more likely than not be realized.
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During 2013, the valuation allowance was decreased by $10 million related to the ability to utilize certain state
capital losses.

The Company had tax credit carryforwards for which a related deferred tax asset of $4,932 million and $5,705
million was recorded at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. These carryforwards are
subject to annual limitations on utilization, with a significant amount scheduled to expire in 2020, if not utilized.

The Company believes the recognized net deferred tax asset (after valuation allowance) of $7,228 million is
more likely than not to be realized based on expectations as to future taxable income in the jurisdictions in which
it operates.

The Company recorded net income tax provision to Paid-in capital related to employee stock-based
compensation transactions of $121 million, $114 million, and $76 million in 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

Cash payments for income taxes were $930 million, $388 million, and $892 million in 2013, 2012, and 2011,
respectively.

The following table presents the U.S. and non-U.S. components of income from continuing operations before
income tax expense (benefit) for 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively:

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,662 $(1,241) $3,250
Non-U.S.(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,820 1,761 2,860

$4,482 $ 520 $6,110

(1) Non-U.S. income is defined as income generated from operations located outside the U.S.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits was approximately $4.1 billion, $4.1 billion, and $4.0 billion at
December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, respectively. Of this total, approximately $1.4
billion, $1.6 billion, and $1.8 billion, respectively (net of federal benefit of state issues, competent authority and
foreign tax credit offsets) represent the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably
affect the effective tax rate in future periods.

Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are classified as provision for income taxes. The
Company recognized $50 million, $(10) million, and $56 million of interest expense (benefit) (net of federal and
state income tax benefits) in the consolidated statements of income for 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.
Interest expense accrued at December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011 was approximately
$293 million, $243 million, and $330 million, respectively, net of federal and state income tax benefits. Penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits for the years mentioned above were immaterial.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits
for 2013, 2012 and 2011 (dollars in millions):

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

Balance at December 31, 2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,711
Increase based on tax positions related to the current period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 412
Increase based on tax positions related to prior periods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70
Decreases based on tax positions related to prior periods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (79)
Decreases related to settlements with taxing authorities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (56)
Decreases related to a lapse of applicable statute of limitations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (13)

Balance at December 31, 2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,045

Increase based on tax positions related to the current period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 299
Increase based on tax positions related to prior periods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 127
Decreases based on tax positions related to prior periods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (21)
Decreases related to settlements with taxing authorities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (260)
Decreases related to a lapse of applicable statute of limitations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (125)

Balance at December 31, 2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,065

Increase based on tax positions related to the current period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51
Increase based on tax positions related to prior periods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 267
Decreases based on tax positions related to prior periods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (141)
Decreases related to settlements with taxing authorities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (146)

Balance at December 31, 2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,096

The Company is under continuous examination by the IRS and other tax authorities in certain countries, such as
Japan and the U.K., and in states in which the Company has significant business operations, such as New York.
The Company is currently under review by the IRS Appeals Office for the remaining issues covering tax years
1999 – 2005. Also, the Company is currently at various levels of field examination with respect to audits by the
IRS, as well as New York State and New York City, for tax years 2006 – 2008 and 2007 – 2009, respectively.
During 2014, the Company expects to reach a conclusion with the U.K. tax authorities on substantially all issues
through tax year 2010.

The Company believes that the resolution of tax matters will not have a material effect on the consolidated
statements of financial condition of the Company, although a resolution could have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated statements of income for a particular future period and on the Company’s effective
income tax rate for any period in which such resolution occurs. The Company has established a liability for
unrecognized tax benefits that the Company believes is adequate in relation to the potential for additional
assessments. Once established, the Company adjusts unrecognized tax benefits only when more information is
available or when an event occurs necessitating a change.

The Company periodically evaluates the likelihood of assessments in each taxing jurisdiction resulting from the
expiration of the applicable statute of limitations or new information regarding the status of current and
subsequent years’ examinations. As part of the Company’s periodic review, federal and state unrecognized tax
benefits were released or remeasured. As a result of this remeasurement, the income tax provision included a
discrete tax benefit of $161 million and $299 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

It is reasonably possible that the gross balance of unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $4.1 billion as of
December 31, 2013 may decrease significantly within the next 12 months due to an expected completion of the
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field examination in connection with the audit by the IRS for tax years 2006 – 2008. At this time, however, it is
not possible to reasonably estimate the decrease to the net balance of unrecognized tax benefits, as well as the
impact on the effective tax rate and the potential benefit to Income from continuing operations due to the
forward-looking nature of such analysis.

The following are the major tax jurisdictions in which the Company and its affiliates operate and the earliest tax
year subject to examination:

Jurisdiction Tax Year

United States . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1999
New York State and City . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2007
Hong Kong . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2007
United Kingdom . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2010
Japan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2012

21. Segment and Geographic Information.

Segment Information.

The Company structures its segments primarily based upon the nature of the financial products and services
provided to customers and the Company’s management organization. The Company provides a wide range of
financial products and services to its customers in each of its business segments: Institutional Securities, Wealth
Management and Investment Management. For further discussion of the Company’s business segments, see
Note 1.

Revenues and expenses directly associated with each respective segment are included in determining its
operating results. Other revenues and expenses that are not directly attributable to a particular segment are
allocated based upon the Company’s allocation methodologies, generally based on each segment’s respective net
revenues, non-interest expenses or other relevant measures.

As a result of revenues and expenses from transactions with other operating segments being treated as
transactions with external parties, the Company includes an Intersegment Eliminations category to reconcile the
business segment results to the Company’s consolidated results. Intersegment Eliminations also reflect the effect
of fees paid by the Institutional Securities business segment to the Wealth Management business segment related
to the bank deposit program.
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Selected financial information for the Company’s segments is presented below:

2013
Institutional

Securities
Wealth

Management
Investment

Management
Intersegment
Eliminations Total

(dollars in millions)

Total non-interest revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $16,544 $12,334 $2,994 $(233) $31,639
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,572 2,100 9 (472) 5,209
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,673 220 15 (477) 4,431

Net interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,101) 1,880 (6) 5 778

Net revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $15,443 $14,214 $2,988 $(228) $32,417

Income from continuing operations before
income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 869 $ 2,629 $ 984 $ — $ 4,482

Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (393) 920 299 — 826

Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . 1,262 1,709 685 — 3,656

Discontinued operations(1):
Gain (loss) from discontinued

operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (81) (1) 9 1 (72)
Provision for (benefit from) income

taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (29) — — — (29)

Net gain (loss) on discontinued
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (52) (1) 9 1 (43)

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,210 1,708 694 1 3,613
Net income applicable to redeemable

noncontrolling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 221 — — 222
Net income applicable to nonredeemable

noncontrolling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 277 — 182 — 459

Net income applicable to Morgan Stanley . . . . . $ 932 $ 1,487 $ 512 $ 1 $ 2,932
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2012
Institutional
Securities(3)

Wealth
Management(3)

Investment
Management

Intersegment
Eliminations Total

(dollars in millions)

Total non-interest revenues . . . . . . . . . . . $12,772 $11,467 $2,243 $(175) $26,307
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,224 1,886 10 (428) 5,692
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,971 319 34 (427) 5,897

Net interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,747) 1,567 (24) (1) (205)

Net revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,025 $13,034 $2,219 $(176) $26,102

Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1,688) $ 1,622 $ 590 $ (4) $ 520

Provision for (benefit from) income
taxes(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,061) 557 267 — (237)

Income (loss) from continuing
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (627) 1,065 323 (4) 757

Discontinued operations(1):
Gain (loss) from discontinued

operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (158) 94 13 3 (48)
Provision for (benefit from) income

taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (36) 26 4 (1) (7)

Net gain (loss) on discontinued
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (122) 68 9 4 (41)

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (749) 1,133 332 — 716
Net income applicable to

redeemable noncontrolling
interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 120 — — 124

Net income applicable to
nonredeemable noncontrolling
interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 170 167 187 — 524

Net income (loss) applicable to Morgan
Stanley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (923) $ 846 $ 145 $ — $ 68
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2011
Institutional
Securities(3)

Wealth
Management(3)

Investment
Management

Intersegment
Eliminations Total

(dollars in millions)

Total non-interest revenues(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . $18,723 $11,340 $1,928 $(115) $31,876
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,860 1,719 10 (355) 7,234
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,900 287 51 (355) 6,883

Net interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,040) 1,432 (41) — 351

Net revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17,683 $12,772 $1,887 $(115) $32,227

Income from continuing operations
before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,550 $ 1,307 $ 253 $ — $ 6,110

Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 880 461 73 — 1,414

Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . 3,670 846 180 — 4,696

Discontinued operations(1):
Gain (loss) from discontinued

operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (216) 21 24 1 (170)
Provision for (benefit from) income

taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (110) 7 (17) 1 (119)

Net gain (loss) from discontinued
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (106) 14 41 — (51)

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,564 860 221 — 4,645
Net income applicable to nonredeemable

noncontrolling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . 220 170 145 — 535

Net income applicable to Morgan Stanley . . . $ 3,344 $ 690 $ 76 $ — $ 4,110

(1) See Note 1 for discussion of discontinued operations.
(2) Results for 2012 included an out-of-period net tax provision of $107 million, attributable to the Investment Management business

segment, related to the overstatement of deferred tax assets associated with partnership investments in prior years and an out-of-period
net tax provision of $50 million, attributable to the Institutional Securities business segment, related to the overstatement of deferred tax
assets associated with repatriated earnings of a foreign subsidiary recorded in prior years (see Note 20).

(3) On January 1, 2013, the International Wealth Management business was transferred from the Wealth Management business segment to
the Equity division within the Institutional Securities business segment. Accordingly, prior-period amounts have been recast to reflect the
International Wealth Management business as part of the Institutional Securities business segment.

(4) In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company recognized a pre-tax loss of approximately $108 million, in net revenues upon application of
the OIS curve within the Institutional Securities business segment (see Note 4).

Total Assets(1)
Institutional
Securities(2)

Wealth
Management(2)

Investment
Management Total

(dollars in millions)

At December 31, 2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $668,596 $156,711 $7,395 $832,702

At December 31, 2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $648,049 $125,565 $7,346 $780,960

(1) Corporate assets have been fully allocated to the Company’s business segments.
(2) Prior-period amounts have been recast to reflect the transfer of the International Wealth Management business from the Wealth

Management business segment to the Institutional Securities business segment.
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Geographic Information.

The Company operates in both U.S. and non-U.S. markets. The Company’s non-U.S. business activities are
principally conducted and managed through European and Asian locations. The net revenues disclosed in the
following table reflect the regional view of the Company’s consolidated net revenues on a managed basis, based
on the following methodology:

• Institutional Securities: advisory and equity underwriting—client location, debt underwriting—revenue
recording location, sales and trading—trading desk location.

• Wealth Management: wealth management representative coverage location.

• Investment Management: client location, except for Merchant Banking and Real Estate Investing
businesses, which are based on asset location.

Net Revenues 2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Americas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $23,282 $20,200 $22,306
EMEA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,542 3,078 6,619
Asia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,593 2,824 3,302

Net revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $32,417 $26,102 $32,227

Total Assets
At December 31,

2013
At December 31,

2012

(dollars in millions)

Americas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $632,255 $587,993
EMEA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 123,008 122,152
Asia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77,439 70,815

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $832,702 $780,960

22. Equity Method Investments.

The Company has investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting (see Note 1) of $4,746
million and $4,682 million at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, included in Other
investments in the consolidated statements of financial condition. Income (losses) from these investments were
$375 million, $(23) million and $(995) million for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and are included in Other
revenues in the consolidated statements of income. The gains (losses) for 2013, 2012 and 2011 were primarily
related to the gains and losses related to the Company’s 40% stake in Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities
Co., Ltd. (“MUMSS”), as described below.

The following presents certain equity method investees at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Book Value(1)

Percent
Ownership

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

(dollars in millions)

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40% $1,610 $1,428
Lansdowne Partners(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19.8% 221 221
Avenue Capital Group(2)(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 198 224
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(1) Book value of these investees exceeds the Company’s share of net assets, reflecting equity method intangible assets and equity method
goodwill.

(2) The Company’s ownership interest represents limited partnership interests. The Company is deemed to have significant influence in
these limited partnerships, as the Company’s limited partnership interests were above the 3% to 5% threshold for interests that should be
accounted for under the equity method.

(3) The Company’s ownership interest represents limited partnership interests in a number of different entities within the Avenue Capital
Group.

Japanese Securities Joint Venture.

The Company holds a 40% voting interest and MUFG holds a 60% voting interest in MUMSS. The Company
accounts for its interest in MUMSS as an equity method investment within the Institutional Securities business
segment (see Note 15). During 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded income (loss) of $570 million, $152
million and $(783) million, respectively, within Other revenues in the consolidated statements of income, arising
from the Company’s 40% stake in MUMSS.

To the extent that losses incurred by MUMSS result in a requirement to restore its capital, MUFG is solely
responsible for providing this additional capital to a minimum level, whereas the Company is not obligated to
contribute additional capital to MUMSS. To the extent that MUMSS is required to increase its capital level due
to factors other than losses, such as changes in regulatory requirements, both MUFG and the Company are
required to contribute the necessary capital based upon their economic interest as set forth above.

In June 2013, MUMSS paid a dividend of approximately $287 million, of which the Company received
approximately $115 million for its proportionate share of MUMSS.

The following presents summarized financial data for MUMSS:

At December 31,

2013 2012

(dollars in millions)

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $118,108 $141,635
Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114,648 138,742
Noncontrolling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 41

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Net revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,305 $2,365 $ 735
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,325 333 (1,746)
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,459 405 (1,976)
Net income (loss) applicable to MUMSS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,441 397 (1,976)

Huaxin Securities Joint Venture.

In June 2011, the Company and Huaxin Securities Co., Ltd. (“Huaxin Securities”) (also known as China Fortune
Securities Co., Ltd.) jointly announced the operational commencement of their securities joint venture in China.
During 2011, the Company recorded initial costs of $130 million related to the formation of this new Chinese
securities joint venture in Other expenses in the consolidated statement of income. The joint venture, Morgan
Stanley Huaxin Securities Company Limited, is registered and principally located in Shanghai. Huaxin Securities
holds a two-thirds interest in the joint venture, while the Company owns a one-third interest. The establishment
of the joint venture allows the Company to further build on its established onshore businesses in China. The joint
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venture’s business includes underwriting and sponsorship of shares in the domestic China market (including A
shares and foreign investment shares), as well as underwriting, sponsorship and principal trading of bonds
(including government and corporate bonds).

Other.

Lansdowne Partners is a London-based investment manager. Avenue Capital Group is a New York-based
investment manager. The investments are accounted for within the Investment Management business segment.

The Company also invests in certain structured transactions and other investments not integral to the operations
of the Company accounted for under the equity method of accounting amounting to $2.7 billion and $2.8 billion
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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23. Parent Company.

Parent Company Only
Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

(dollars in millions, except share data)

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

Assets
Cash and due from banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,296 $ 1,342
Deposits with banking subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,070 8,222
Interest bearing deposits with banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,846 4,165
Trading assets, at fair value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,704 2,930
Securities purchased under agreement to resell with affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,748 48,493
Advances to subsidiaries:

Bank and bank holding company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,015 16,731
Non-bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114,833 115,949

Equity investments in subsidiaries:
Bank and bank holding company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,144 23,511
Non-bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34,968 32,591

Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,508 7,201

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $258,132 $261,135

Liabilities
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 506 $ 228
Trading liabilities, at fair value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,135 1,117
Payables to subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43,420 36,733
Other liabilities and accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,312 3,132
Long-term borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 143,838 157,816

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 192,211 199,026

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Equity

Preferred stock (see Note 15) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,220 1,508
Common stock, $0.01 par value:

Shares authorized: 3,500,000,000 at December 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012;

Shares issued: 2,038,893,979 at December 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012;

Shares outstanding: 1,944,868,751 at December 31, 2013 and
1,974,042,123 at December 31, 2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 20

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,570 23,426
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42,172 39,912
Employee stock trusts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,718 2,932
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,093) (516)
Common stock held in treasury, at cost, $0.01 par value; 94,025,228 shares at

December 31, 2013 and 64,851,856 shares at December 31, 2012 . . . . . . . . . . (2,968) (2,241)
Common stock issued to employee stock trusts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,718) (2,932)

Total shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65,921 62,109

Total liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $258,132 $261,135
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Parent Company Only
Condensed Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

(dollars in millions)

2013 2012 2011

Revenues:
Dividends from non-bank subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,113 $ 545 $ 7,153
Trading . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (635) (3,400) 4,772
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2 —
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 36 (241)

Total non-interest revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 505 (2,817) 11,684

Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,783 3,316 3,251
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,053 5,190 5,600

Net interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,270) (1,874) (2,349)

Net revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (765) (4,691) 9,335
Non-interest expenses:

Non-interest expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 185 114 120

Income (loss) before provision for (benefit from) income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (950) (4,805) 9,215
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (354) (1,088) 1,825

Net income (loss) before undistributed gain (loss) subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (596) (3,717) 7,390
Undistributed gain (loss) of subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,528 3,785 (3,280)

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,932 68 4,110
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (143) (128) (35)
Amortization of cash flow hedges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 6 7
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale . . . . . . (433) 28 87
Pension, postretirement and other related adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5) (265) 251

Comprehensive income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,355 $ (291) $ 4,420

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,932 $ 68 $ 4,110
Preferred stock dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 277 98 2,043

Earnings (loss) applicable to Morgan Stanley common shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,655 $ (30) $ 2,067
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Parent Company Only
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

(dollars in millions)

2013 2012 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,932 $ 68 $ 4,110

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used for) operating
activities:

Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (303) (1,653) 279
Compensation payable in common stock and options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,180 891 1,300
Amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (47) 23 22
Undistributed (gain) loss of subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,528) (3,785) 3,280
Other non-cash adjustments to net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (29) (155)

Change in assets and liabilities:
Trading assets, net of Trading liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7,332) 9,587 81
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (165) 1,235 681
Other liabilities and accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,192) 6,637 (4,242)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11,455) 12,974 5,356

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advances to and investments in subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,458 6,461 10,290
Securities purchased under agreement to resell with affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,745 1,864 (726)

Net cash provided by investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,203 8,325 9,564

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from (payments for) short-term borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 279 (872) (253)

Proceeds from:
Excess tax benefits associated with stock-based awards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 42 —
Issuance of preferred stock, net of issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,696 — —
Issuance of long-term borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,944 20,582 28,106

Payments for:
Long-term borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (31,928) (41,914) (35,805)
Repurchases of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (691) (227) (317)
Cash dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (475) (469) (834)

Net cash used for financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8,165) (22,858) (9,103)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (100) (32) 113

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,483 (1,591) 5,930
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,729 15,320 9,390

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 16,212 $ 13,729 $ 15,320

Cash and cash equivalents include:
Cash and due from banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,296 $ 1,342 $ 1,804
Deposits with banking subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,070 8,222 10,131
Interest bearing deposits with banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,846 4,165 3,385

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 16,212 $ 13,729 $ 15,320

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information.

Cash payments for interest were $3,733 million, $4,254 million and $4,617 million for 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Cash payments (refunds) for income taxes were $268 million, $(13) million and $57 million for 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively.
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Transactions with Subsidiaries.

The Parent Company has transactions with its consolidated subsidiaries determined on an agreed-upon basis and
has guaranteed certain unsecured lines of credit and contractual obligations of certain of its consolidated
subsidiaries. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior-period amounts to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

Guarantees.

In the normal course of its business, the Parent Company guarantees certain of its subsidiaries’ obligations under
derivative and other financial arrangements. The Parent Company records Trading assets and Trading liabilities,
which include derivative contracts, at fair value on its condensed statements of financial condition.

The Parent Company also, in the normal course of its business, provides standard indemnities to counterparties
on behalf of its subsidiaries for taxes, including U.S. and foreign withholding taxes, on interest and other
payments made on derivatives, securities and stock lending transactions, and certain annuity products. These
indemnity payments could be required based on a change in the tax laws or change in interpretation of applicable
tax rulings. Certain contracts contain provisions that enable the Parent Company to terminate the agreement upon
the occurrence of such events. The maximum potential amount of future payments that the Parent Company
could be required to make under these indemnifications cannot be estimated. The Parent Company has not
recorded any contingent liability in the condensed financial statements for these indemnifications and believes
that the occurrence of any events that would trigger payments under these contracts is remote.

The Parent Company has issued guarantees on behalf of its subsidiaries to various U.S. and non-U.S. exchanges
and clearinghouses that trade and clear securities and/or futures contracts. Under these guarantee arrangements,
the Parent Company may be required to pay the financial obligations of its subsidiaries related to business
transacted on or with the exchanges and clearinghouses in the event of a subsidiary’s default on its obligations to
the exchange or the clearinghouse. The Parent Company has not recorded any contingent liability in the
condensed financial statements for these arrangements and believes that any potential requirements to make
payments under these arrangements are remote.

The Parent Company guarantees certain debt instruments and warrants issued by subsidiaries. The debt
instruments and warrants totaled $12.0 billion and $8.9 billion at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. In
connection with subsidiary lease obligations, the Parent Company has issued guarantees to various lessors. At
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Parent Company had $1.4 billion and $1.4 billion of guarantees outstanding,
respectively, under subsidiary lease obligations, primarily in the U.K.
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24. Quarterly Results (unaudited).
2013 Quarter 2012 Quarter

First Second Third Fourth(1) First Second(2) Third(3) Fourth(3)

(dollars in millions, except per share data)
Total non-interest revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $7,972 $8,297 $7,822 $7,548 $6,981 $7,100 $ 5,436 $6,790
Net interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 182 204 110 282 (59) (161) (158) 173

Net revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,154 8,501 7,932 7,830 6,922 6,939 5,278 6,963

Total non-interest expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,572 6,725 6,591 8,047 6,719 6,001 6,760 6,102

Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,582 1,776 1,341 (217) 203 938 (1,482) 861

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes . . . . . . . . 332 556 339 (401) 54 225 (525) 9

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . . . . . 1,250 1,220 1,002 184 149 713 (957) 852

Discontinued operations(4):
Gain (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . (30) (42) 14 (14) 27 51 (13) (113)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes . . . . (11) (13) (2) (3) 42 14 (14) (49)

Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . . (19) (29) 16 (11) (15) 37 1 (64)

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,231 1,191 1,018 173 134 750 (956) 788
Net income applicable to redeemable noncontrolling

interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122 100 — — — — 8 116
Net income applicable to nonredeemable

noncontrolling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 147 111 112 89 228 159 59 78

Net income (loss) applicable to Morgan Stanley . . . $ 962 $ 980 $ 906 $ 84 $ (94) $ 591 $(1,023) $ 594
Preferred stock dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 177 26 48 25 27 24 26

Earnings (loss) applicable to Morgan Stanley
common shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 936 $ 803 $ 880 $ 36 $ (119) $ 564 $(1,047) $ 568

Earnings (loss) per basic common share(5):
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . $ 0.50 $ 0.44 $ 0.45 $ 0.02 $ (0.05) $ 0.28 $ (0.55) $ 0.34
Net gain (loss) from discontinued

operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.01) (0.02) 0.01 — (0.01) 0.02 — (0.04)

Earnings (loss) per basic common
share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.49 $ 0.42 $ 0.46 $ 0.02 $ (0.06) $ 0.30 $ (0.55) $ 0.30

Earnings (loss) per diluted common share(5):
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . $ 0.49 $ 0.43 $ 0.44 $ 0.02 $ (0.05) $ 0.28 $ (0.55) $ 0.33
Net gain (loss) from discontinued

operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.01) (0.02) 0.01 — (0.01) 0.01 — (0.04)

Earnings (loss) per diluted common
share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.48 $ 0.41 $ 0.45 $ 0.02 $ (0.06) $ 0.29 $ (0.55) $ 0.29

Dividends declared per common share . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05
Book value per common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $31.21 $31.48 $32.13 $32.24 $30.74 $31.02 $ 30.53 $30.70

(1) The fourth quarter of 2013 included a discrete tax benefit of $192 million, consisting of $100 million related to the remeasurement of
reserves and related interest and $92 million related to the establishment of a previously unrecognized deferred tax asset associated with
the reorganization of certain non-U.S. legal entities (see Note 20). The fourth quarter of 2013 included litigation expenses of $1.4 billion
related to settlements and reserve additions (see Note 13).

(2) The second quarter of 2012 included an out-of-period pre-tax gain of approximately $300 million related to the reversal of amounts
recorded in cumulative other comprehensive income due to the incorrect application of hedge accounting on certain derivative contracts
previously designated as net investment hedges of certain foreign, non-U.S. dollar denominated subsidiaries. This amount included a pre-
tax gain of approximately $191 million related to the first quarter of 2012, with the remainder impacting prior periods (see Note 12).

(3) The third quarter of 2012 included an out-of-period net tax provision of $82 million primarily related to the overstatement of tax benefits
associated with repatriated earnings of a foreign subsidiary in prior periods, while the fourth quarter of 2012 included an out-of-period
net tax provision of $75 million primarily related to the overstatement of deferred tax assets associated with partnership investments in
prior periods (see Note 20).

(4) See Note 1 for more information on discontinued operations.
(5) Summation of the quarters’ earnings per common share may not equal the annual amounts due to the averaging effect of the number of

shares and share equivalents throughout the year.
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25. Subsequent Events.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial
statements through the date of this report and the Company has not identified any recordable or disclosable
events, not otherwise reported in these consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto, except for the
following:

Common Dividend.

On January 17, 2014, the Company announced that its Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend per
common share of $0.05. The dividend is payable on February 14, 2014 to common shareholders of record on
January 31, 2014.

Long-Term Borrowings.

Subsequent to December 31, 2013 and through February 10, 2014, the Company’s long-term borrowings (net of
issuances) decreased by approximately $2.2 billion. This amount includes the Company’s issuance of $2.8 billion
in senior debt on January 24, 2014.

Legal Matters.

On February 4, 2014, and subsequent to the release of the Company’s 2013 earnings on January 17, 2014, legal
reserves were increased within the Institutional Securities business segment, related to the settlement with the
Federal Housing Finance Agency (see Note 13).
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FINANCIAL DATA SUPPLEMENT (Unaudited)
Average Balances and Interest Rates and Net Interest Income

2013

Average
Weekly
Balance Interest

Average
Rate

(dollars in millions)
Assets
Interest earning assets:

Trading assets(1):
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $119,549 $ 1,948 1.6%
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103,774 344 0.3

Securities available for sale:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44,112 447 1.0

Loans:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,939 1,052 3.1
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 489 69 14.1

Interest bearing deposits with banks:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34,636 86 0.2
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,609 43 0.6

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell and
Securities borrowed:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 203,742 (217) (0.1)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77,713 197 0.3

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62,028 751 1.2
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,077 489 2.6

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $706,668 $ 5,209 0.7%

Non-interest earning assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 121,793

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $828,461

Liabilities and Equity
Interest bearing liabilities:

Deposits:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 91,713 $ 159 0.2%
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 260 — —

Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 964 2 0.2
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,063 18 1.7

Long-term debt:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 152,532 3,696 2.4
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,857 62 0.6

Trading liabilities(1):
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31,861 — —
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59,200 — —

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and Securities loaned:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 108,896 681 0.6
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66,697 788 1.2

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 98,335 (1,117) (1.1)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37,679 142 0.4

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $659,057 $ 4,431 0.7

Non-interest bearing liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 169,404

Total liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $828,461

Net interest income and net interest rate spread . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 778 —%

(1) Interest expense on Trading liabilities is reported as a reduction of Interest income on Trading assets.
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FINANCIAL DATA SUPPLEMENT (Unaudited)—(Continued)
Average Balances and Interest Rates and Net Interest Income

2012

Average
Weekly
Balance Interest

Average
Rate

(dollars in millions)
Assets
Interest earning assets:

Trading assets(1):
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $133,615 $ 2,247 1.7%
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 82,019 489 0.6

Securities available for sale:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,141 343 1.0

Loans:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,996 597 2.8
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 363 46 12.7

Interest bearing deposits with banks:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,905 58 0.2
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,612 66 0.6

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell and Securities
borrowed:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 189,186 (315) (0.2)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 91,851 679 0.7

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54,651 471 0.9
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,404 1,011 6.6

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $659,743 $ 5,692 0.9%

Non-interest earning assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122,428

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $782,171

Liabilities and Equity
Interest bearing liabilities:

Deposits:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 69,265 $ 181 0.3%
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 165 — —

Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 557 5 0.9
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,383 33 2.4

Long-term debt:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 163,961 4,544 2.8
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,552 78 1.0

Trading liabilities(1):
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38,125 — —
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51,834 — —

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and Securities loaned:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101,210 522 0.5
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59,932 1,283 2.1

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 82,881 (1,475) (1.8)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,992 726 2.1

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $610,857 $ 5,897 1.0

Non-interest bearing liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 171,314

Total liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $782,171

Net interest income and net interest rate spread . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (205) (0.1)%

(1) Interest expense on Trading liabilities is reported as a reduction of Interest income on Trading assets.
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FINANCIAL DATA SUPPLEMENT (Unaudited)—(Continued)
Average Balances and Interest Rates and Net Interest Income

2011

Average
Weekly
Balance Interest

Average
Rate

(dollars in millions)
Assets
Interest earning assets:

Trading assets(1):
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $122,704 $ 2,636 2.1%
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114,445 957 0.8

Securities available for sale:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,712 348 1.3

Loans:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,294 326 2.7
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 420 30 7.1

Interest bearing deposits with banks:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,256 49 0.1
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,558 137 0.8

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell and Securities
borrowed:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 191,843 (79) —
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 110,682 965 0.9

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45,336 1,335 2.9
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,454 530 3.4

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $698,704 $ 7,234 1.0%

Non-interest earning assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 140,131

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $838,835

Liabilities and Equity
Interest bearing liabilities:

Deposits:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 64,559 $ 236 0.4%
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 91 — —

Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 874 7 0.8
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,163 34 1.6

Long-term debt:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 184,623 4,880 2.6
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,701 32 0.4

Trading liabilities(1):
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,070 — —
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,313 — —

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and Securities loaned:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 110,270 649 0.6
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69,276 1,276 1.8

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 90,193 (1,094) (1.2)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38,139 863 2.3

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $659,272 $ 6,883 1.0

Non-interest bearing liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 179,563

Total liabilities and equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $838,835

Net interest income and net interest rate spread . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 351 — %

(1) Interest expense on Trading liabilities is reported as a reduction of Interest income on Trading assets.
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FINANCIAL DATA SUPPLEMENT (Unaudited)—(Continued)
Rate/Volume Analysis

The following tables set forth an analysis of the effect on net interest income of volume and rate changes:

2013 versus 2012

Increase (decrease) due to change in:

Volume Rate Net Change

(dollars in millions)

Interest earning assets
Trading assets:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(237) $ (62) $ (299)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 130 (275) (145)

Securities available for sale:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 88 16 104

Loans:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 368 87 455
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 7 23

Interest bearing deposits with banks:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 8 28
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (19) (4) (23)

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under
agreements to resell and Securities borrowed:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (24) 122 98
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (105) (377) (482)

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64 216 280
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 241 (763) (522)

Change in interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 542 $(1,025) $ (483)

Interest bearing liabilities
Deposits:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 59 $ (81) $ (22)
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 (7) (3)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8) (7) (15)

Long-term debt:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (317) (531) (848)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 (40) (16)

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
Securities loaned:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 119 159
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 145 (640) (495)

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (276) 634 358
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79 (663) (584)

Change in interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(250) $(1,216) $(1,466)

Change in net interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 792 $ 191 $ 983
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Rate/Volume Analysis

2012 versus 2011

Increase (decrease) due to change in:

Volume Rate Net Change

(dollars in millions)

Interest earning assets
Trading assets:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 234 $ (623) $ (389)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (271) (197) (468)

Securities available for sale:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93 (98) (5)

Loans:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 231 40 271
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4) 20 16

Interest bearing deposits with banks:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (18) 27 9
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (49) (22) (71)

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under
agreements to resell and Securities borrowed:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 (237) (236)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (164) (122) (286)

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 274 (1,138) (864)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2) 483 481

Change in interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 325 $(1,867) $(1,542)

Interest bearing liabilities
Deposits:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 17 $ (72) $ (55)
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3) 1 (2)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12) 11 (1)

Long-term debt:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (546) 210 (336)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1) 47 46

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
Securities loaned:

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (53) (74) (127)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (172) 179 7

Other:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 89 (470) (381)
Non-U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (94) (43) (137)

Change in interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (775) $ (211) $ (986)

Change in net interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,100 $(1,656) $ (556)
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Deposits

Average Deposits(1)

2013 2012 2011

Average
Amount(1)

Average
Rate

Average
Amount(1)

Average
Rate

Average
Amount(1)

Average
Rate

(dollars in millions)

Deposits(2):
Savings deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $90,447 0.1% $66,073 0.1% $61,258 0.2%
Time deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,526 3.9% 3,357 2.6% 3,392 3.5%

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $91,973 0.2% $69,430 0.3% $64,650 0.4%

(1) The Company calculates its average balances based upon weekly amounts, except where weekly balances are unavailable, month-end
balances are used.

(2) Deposits are primarily located in U.S. offices.

Ratios

2013 2012 2011

Net income to average assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.4% N/M 0.5%
Return on average common equity(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.3% N/M 3.8%
Return on total equity(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.6% 0.1% 6.9%
Dividend payout ratio(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14.7% N/M 16.3%
Total average common equity to average assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.5% 7.8% 6.5%
Total average equity to average assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.7% 8.0% 7.1%

N/M—Not meaningful.
(1) Percentage is based on net income applicable to Morgan Stanley less preferred dividends as a percentage of average common equity.
(2) Percentage is based on net income as a percentage of average total equity.
(3) Percentage is based on dividends declared per common share as a percentage of net income per diluted share.

Short-term Borrowings

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Securities sold under repurchase agreements:
Period-end balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $145,676 $122,674 $104,800
Average balance(1)(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 136,151 125,465 142,784
Maximum balance at any month-end . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 145,676 139,962 164,511
Weighted average interest rate during the period(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.7% 0.9% 0.9%
Weighted average interest rate on period-end balance(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.4% 0.8% 0.8%

Securities loaned:
Period-end balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 32,799 $ 36,849 $ 30,462
Average balance(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39,442 35,677 36,762
Maximum balance at any month-end . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44,182 39,881 50,709
Weighted average interest rate during the period(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.2% 1.9% 1.9%
Weighted average interest rate on period-end balance(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.2% 1.5% 1.8%

(1) The Company calculates its average balances based upon weekly amounts, except where weekly balances are unavailable, month-end
balances are used.

(2) In 2011, the period-end balance was lower than the annual average primarily due to a decrease in the overall balance sheet during the
year.
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(3) The approximated weighted average interest rate was calculated using (a) interest expense incurred on all securities sold under
repurchase agreements and securities loaned transactions, whether or not such transactions were reported on the consolidated statements
of financial condition and (b) average balances that were reported on a net basis where certain criteria were met in accordance with
applicable offsetting guidance. In addition, securities-for-securities transactions in which the Company was the borrower were not
included in the average balances since they were not reported on the consolidated statements of financial condition.

(4) The approximated weighted average interest rate was calculated using (a) interest expense for all securities sold under repurchase
agreements and securities loaned transactions, whether or not such transactions were reported on the consolidated statements of financial
condition and (b) period-end balances that were reported on a net basis where certain criteria were met in accordance with applicable
offsetting guidance. In addition, securities-for-securities transactions in which the Company was the borrower were not included in the
period-end balances since they were not reported on the consolidated statements of financial condition.

Cross-border Outstandings

Cross-border outstandings are based upon the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council’s (“FFIEC”)
regulatory guidelines for reporting cross-border risk. Claims include cash, customer and other receivables,
securities purchased under agreements to resell, securities borrowed and cash trading instruments, but exclude
commitments. Securities purchased under agreements to resell and securities borrowed are presented based on
the domicile of the counterparty, without reduction for related securities collateral held. Effective December 31,
2013, the regulatory guidelines for reporting cross-border risk were updated and prospectively require the
reporting of, among other items, cross-border exposure to Non-banking financial institutions. Cross-border risk at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was not recast to reflect the new requirements. For purposes of
comparability, exposure to Non-banking financial institutions as of December 31, 2013 is reported in Other in the
tables below. For information regarding the Company’s country risk exposure, see “Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk—Risk Management—Credit Risk—Country Risk Exposure” in Part II, Item 7A.

The following tables set forth cross-border outstandings for each country in which cross-border outstandings
exceed 1% of the Company’s consolidated assets or 20% of the Company’s total capital, whichever is less, at
December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively, in accordance with the FFIEC
guidelines (dollars in millions):

At December 31, 2013

Country Banks Governments Other(1) Total

United Kingdom . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,874 $ 911 $57,594 $70,379
Japan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,251 3,622 26,426 57,299
Cayman Islands . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 — 45,041 45,042
Germany . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,844 10,312 10,613 29,769
France . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,408 264 6,247 28,919
Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,988 2,012 7,108 12,108
Netherlands . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,474 — 10,015 11,489
Korea . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65 4,307 3,376 7,748

At December 31, 2012

Country Banks Governments Other Total

United Kingdom . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17,504 $ 6 $100,090 $117,600
Cayman Islands . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 10 41,628 41,643
France . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28,699 149 3,915 32,763
Japan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,935 148 2,967 28,050
Germany . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,084 3,014 4,192 22,290
Netherlands . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,700 — 10,920 12,620
Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,651 1,310 2,893 10,854
Korea . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32 6,812 2,311 9,155
Switzerland . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,319 242 5,483 9,044
Luxembourg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 221 223 7,952 8,396
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At December 31, 2011

Country Banks Governments Other Total

United Kingdom . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $13,852 $ 2 $89,585 $103,439
Cayman Islands . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 766 — 31,169 31,935
France . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,561 1,096 4,196 28,853
Japan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,542 436 2,821 26,799
Germany . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,674 3,485 1,859 24,018
Netherlands . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,508 23 8,826 12,357
Luxembourg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,619 94 6,137 7,850
Brazil . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 149 3,398 2,165 5,712
Australia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,008 557 1,414 3,979
Italy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 881 1,463 539 2,883

(1) Other includes Non-banking financial institutions and others in the 2013 presentation.

For cross-border exposure that exceeds 0.75% but does not exceed 1% of the Company’s consolidated assets,
Ireland, Switzerland and China had a total cross-border exposure of $20,534 million at December 31, 2013,
Saudi Arabia and Singapore had a total cross-border exposure of $12,848 million at December 31, 2012, and
Korea, Singapore, Canada and certain other countries had a total cross-border exposure of $26,908 million at
December 31, 2011.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
our Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term
is defined under Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e). Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts
and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Company’s management
and directors; and

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
(1992). Based on management’s assessment and those criteria, management believes that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has audited and issued a report on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting, which appears below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Morgan Stanley:

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Morgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2013, and for the year
then ended, and our report dated February 25, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York
February 25, 2014
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

No change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Exchange Act
Rule 13a-15(f)) occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2013 that materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

Not applicable.
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Part III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Information relating to the Company’s directors and nominees under the following captions in the Company’s
definitive proxy statement for its 2014 annual meeting of shareholders (“Morgan Stanley’s Proxy Statement”) is
incorporated by reference herein.

• “Item 1—Election of Directors—Director Nominees”

• “Item 1—Election of Directors—Corporate Governance—Board Meetings and Committees”

• “Item 1—Election of Directors—Beneficial Ownership of Company Common Stock—Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”

Information relating to the Company’s executive officers is contained in Part I, Item 1 of this report under
“Executive Officers of Morgan Stanley.”

Morgan Stanley’s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct applies to all directors, officers and employees,
including its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Deputy Chief Financial Officer. You can find
our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct on our internet site, www.morganstanley.com/about/company/
governance/ethics.html. We will post any amendments to the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, and any
waivers that are required to be disclosed by the rules of either the SEC or the NYSE, on our internet site.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information relating to director and executive officer compensation under the following captions in
Morgan Stanley’s Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein.

• “Item 1—Election of Directors—Executive Compensation”

• “Item 1—Election of Directors—Corporate Governance—Director Compensation”
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters.

Equity Compensation Plan Information. The following table provides information about outstanding awards
and shares of common stock available for future awards under all of Morgan Stanley’s equity compensation
plans as of December 31, 2013. Morgan Stanley has not made any grants of common stock outside of its equity
compensation plans.

(a) (b) (c)

Plan Category

Number of securities to be issued
upon exercise of

outstanding options, warrants
and rights

(#)(1)

Weighted-average exercise
price of outstanding options,

warrants and rights
($)(2)

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation

plans (excluding securities
reflected in column (a))

(#)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 169,757,711 49.3974 107,080,353(3)

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security
holders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,482,390 — — (4)

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 171,240,101 49.3974 107,080,353

(1) Amounts include outstanding stock option, restricted stock unit and performance stock unit awards. The number of outstanding
performance stock unit awards is based on the target number of units granted to senior executives.

(2) Amounts reflect the weighted-average exercise price with respect to outstanding stock options and does not take into account outstanding
restricted stock units and performance stock units, which do not provide for an exercise price.

(3) Amount includes the following:

(a) 39,182,870 shares available under the Morgan Stanley Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”). Pursuant to this plan, which is
qualified under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, eligible employees were permitted to purchase shares of common stock
at a discount to market price through regular payroll deduction. The Compensation, Management Development and Succession
(“CMDS”) Committee approved the discontinuation of the ESPP, effective June 1, 2009, such that no further contributions to the
plan will be permitted following such date, until such time as the CMDS Committee determines to recommence contributions under
the plan.

(b) 61,388,699 shares available under the 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan. Awards may consist of stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units to be settled by the delivery of shares of common stock (or the value
thereof), performance-based units, other awards that are valued by reference to or otherwise based on the fair market value of
common stock, and other equity-based or equity-related awards approved by the CMDS Committee.

(c) 5,579,314 shares available under the Employee Equity Accumulation Plan, which includes 732,857 shares available for awards of
restricted stock and restricted stock units. Awards may consist of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted
stock units to be settled by the delivery of shares of common stock (or the value thereof), other awards that are valued by reference
to or otherwise based on the fair market value of common stock, and other equity-based or equity-related awards approved by the
CMDS Committee.

(d) 355,243 shares available under the Tax Deferred Equity Participation Plan. Awards consist of restricted stock units, which are
settled by the delivery of shares of common stock.

(e) 574,227 shares available under the Directors’ Equity Capital Accumulation Plan. This plan provides for periodic awards of shares of
common stock and stock units to non-employee directors and also allows non-employee directors to defer the cash fees they earn for
services as a director in the form of stock units.

(4) As of December 31, 2013, no shares remained available for future issuance under the Financial Advisor and Investment Representative
Compensation Plan (“FAIRCP”), which was terminated effective December 31, 2011, and the Morgan Stanley 2009 Replacement Equity
Incentive Compensation Plan for Morgan Stanley Smith Barney Employees (“REICP”), which was terminated effective December 31,
2012. However, awards remained outstanding under these plans as of December 31, 2013. The material features of the FAIRCP and the
REICP, which were not approved by shareholders under SEC rules, are as follows:

(a) FAIRCP: Financial advisors and investment representatives in the Wealth Management business segment were eligible to receive
awards under FAIRCP in the form of cash, restricted stock and restricted stock units settled by the delivery of shares of common
stock.
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(b) REICP: REICP was adopted in connection with the Wealth Management JV and without stockholder approval pursuant to the
employment inducement award exception under the New York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Listing Standards. The
equity awards granted pursuant to the REICP were limited to awards to induce certain Citigroup Inc. (“Citi”) employees to join the
new Wealth Management JV by replacing the value of Citi awards that were forfeited in connection with the employees’ transfer of
employment to the Wealth Management business segment. Awards under the REICP were authorized in the form of restricted stock
units, stock appreciation rights, stock options and restricted stock and other forms of stock-based awards.

The foregoing descriptions do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the
FAIRCP and REICP plan documents which, along with all plans under which awards were available for grant in
2013, are included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

* * *

Other information relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is set forth under
the caption “Item 1—Election of Directors—Beneficial Ownership of Company Common Stock” in Morgan
Stanley’s Proxy Statement and such information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions under the following caption in Morgan
Stanley’s Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein.

• “Item 1—Election of Directors—Corporate Governance—Related Person Transactions Policy”

• “Item 1—Election of Directors—Corporate Governance—Certain Transactions”

Information regarding director independence under the following caption in Morgan Stanley’s Proxy Statement
is incorporated by reference herein.

• “Item 1—Election of Directors—Corporate Governance—Director Independence”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information regarding principal accountant fees and services under the following caption in Morgan Stanley’s
Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein.

• “Item 2—Ratification of Appointment of Morgan Stanley’s Independent Auditor” (excluding the
information under the subheading “Audit Committee Report”)
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

Documents filed as part of this report.

• The consolidated financial statements required to be filed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are
included in Part II, Item 8 hereof.

• An exhibit index has been filed as part of this report beginning on page E-1 and is incorporated herein by
reference.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on February 25,
2014.

MORGAN STANLEY

(REGISTRANT)
By: /s/ JAMES P. GORMAN

(James P. Gorman)
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned, hereby severally constitute Ruth Porat, Eric F. Grossman and Martin M. Cohen, and each
of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys with full power to them and each of them to sign for us, and in our
names in the capacities indicated below, any and all amendments to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming our signatures as they may be signed
by our said attorneys to any and all amendments to said Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 25th day of February, 2014.

Signature Title

/S/ JAMES P. GORMAN

(James P. Gorman)
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/S/ RUTH PORAT

(Ruth Porat)
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

/S/ PAUL C. WIRTH

(Paul C. Wirth)
Deputy Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

/S/ ERSKINE B. BOWLES

(Erskine B. Bowles)
Director

/S/ HOWARD J. DAVIES

(Howard J. Davies)
Director

/S/ THOMAS H. GLOCER

(Thomas H. Glocer)
Director

/S/ ROBERT H. HERZ

(Robert H. Herz)
Director

/S/ C. ROBERT KIDDER

(C. Robert Kidder)
Director

/S/ KLAUS KLEINFELD

(Klaus Kleinfeld)
Director
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Signature Title

/S/ DONALD T. NICOLAISEN

(Donald T. Nicolaisen)

Director

/S/ HUTHAM S. OLAYAN

(Hutham S. Olayan)

Director

/S/ JAMES W. OWENS

(James W. Owens)

Director

/S/ O. GRIFFITH SEXTON

(O. Griffith Sexton)

Director

/S/ RYOSUKE TAMAKOSHI

(Ryosuke Tamakoshi)

Director

/S/ MASAAKI TANAKA

(Masaaki Tanaka)

Director

/S/ LAURA D’ANDREA TYSON

(Laura D’Andrea Tyson)

Director

/S/ RAYFORD WILKINS, JR.

(Rayford Wilkins, Jr.)

Director
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Exhibit Index

Certain of the following exhibits, as indicated parenthetically, were previously filed as exhibits to registration
statements filed by Morgan Stanley or its predecessor companies under the Securities Act or to reports or
registration statements filed by Morgan Stanley or its predecessor companies under the Exchange Act and are
hereby incorporated by reference to such statements or reports. Morgan Stanley’s Exchange Act file number is
1-11758. The Exchange Act file number of Morgan Stanley Group Inc., a predecessor company (“MSG”), was
1-9085.1

Exhibit
No. Description

2.1 Amended and Restated Joint Venture Contribution and Formation Agreement dated as of May 29,
2009 by and among Citigroup Inc. and Morgan Stanley and Morgan Stanley Smith Barney Holdings
LLC (Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29, 2009).

2.2 Integration and Investment Agreement dated as of March 30, 2010 by and between Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group, Inc. and Morgan Stanley (Exhibit 2.2 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011).

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Morgan Stanley, as amended to date (Exhibit 3
to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009), as amended
by the Certificate of Elimination of Series B Non-Cumulative Non-Voting Perpetual Convertible
Preferred Stock (Exhibit 3.1 Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 20, 2011), as
amended by the Certificate of Merger of Domestic Corporations dated December 29, 2011 (Exhibit 3.3
to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012), as
amended by the Certificate of Designation of Preferences and Rights of the Fixed-to-Floating Rate
Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E (Exhibit 2.5 to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement on
Form 8-A dated September 27, 2013), as amended by the Certificate of Designation of Preferences and
Rights of the Fixed-to-Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F (Exhibit 2.3 to Morgan
Stanley’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated December 9, 2013).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Morgan Stanley, as amended to date (Exhibit 3.1 to Morgan
Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 9, 2010).

4.1 Indenture dated as of February 24, 1993 between Morgan Stanley and The Bank of New York, as
trustee (Exhibit 4 to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 33-57202)).

4.2 Amended and Restated Senior Indenture dated as of May 1, 1999 between Morgan Stanley and The
Bank of New York, as trustee (Exhibit 4-e to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3/A (No. 333-75289) as amended by Fourth Supplemental Senior Indenture dated as of
October 8, 2007 (Exhibit 4.3 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended November 30, 2007).

4.3 Senior Indenture dated as of November 1, 2004 between Morgan Stanley and The Bank of New York,
as trustee (Exhibit 4-f to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement on Form S-3/A (No. 333-117752),
as amended by First Supplemental Senior Indenture dated as of September 4, 2007 (Exhibit 4.5 to
Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2007), Second
Supplemental Senior Indenture dated as of January 4, 2008 (Exhibit 4.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 4, 2008), Third Supplemental Senior Indenture dated as of
September 10, 2008 (Exhibit 4 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended August 31, 2008), Fourth Supplemental Senior Indenture dated as of December 1, 2008

(1) For purposes of this Exhibit Index, references to “The Bank of New York” mean in some instances the
entity successor to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. or J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Association;
references to “JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.” mean the entity formerly known as The Chase Manhattan
Bank, in some instances as the successor to Chemical Bank; references to “J.P. Morgan Trust Company,
N.A.” mean the entity formerly known as Bank One Trust Company, N.A., as successor to The First
National Bank of Chicago.
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(Exhibit 4.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 1, 2008), Fifth
Supplemental Senior Indenture dated as of April 1, 2009 (Exhibit 4 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009), Sixth Supplemental Senior Indenture
dated as of September 16, 2011 (Exhibit 4.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2011), Seventh Supplemental Senior Indenture dated as of
November 21, 2011 (Exhibit 4.4 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011) and Eighth Supplemental Senior Indenture dated as of May 4, 2012 (Exhibit 4.1
to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012).

4.4 The Unit Agreement Without Holders’ Obligations, dated as of August 29, 2008, between Morgan
Stanley and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Unit Agent, as Trustee and Paying Agent under the
Senior Indenture referred to therein and as Warrant Agent under the Warrant Agreement referred to
therein (Exhibit 4.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2008).

4.5 Amended and Restated Subordinated Indenture dated as of May 1, 1999 between Morgan Stanley and
The Bank of New York, as trustee (Exhibit 4-f to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3/A (No. 333-75289)).

4.6 Subordinated Indenture dated as of October 1, 2004 between Morgan Stanley and The Bank of New
York, as trustee (Exhibit 4-g to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement on Form S-3/A
(No. 333-117752)).

4.7 Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of March 1, 1998 between Morgan Stanley and The Bank of
New York, as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended February 28, 1998).

4.8 Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of October 1, 2004 between Morgan Stanley and The Bank of
New York, as trustee (Exhibit 4-ww to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement on Form S-3/A
(No. 333-117752)).

4.9 Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of October 12, 2006 between Morgan Stanley and The Bank
of New York, as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
October 12, 2006).

4.10 Deposit Agreement dated as of July 6, 2006 among Morgan Stanley, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and
the holders from time to time of the depositary receipts described therein (Exhibit 4.3 to Morgan
Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2006).

4.11 Depositary Receipt for Depositary Shares, representing Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series A (included in Exhibit 4.10 hereto).

4.12 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Morgan Stanley Capital Trust III dated as of February 27,
2003 among Morgan Stanley, as depositor, The Bank of New York, as property trustee, The Bank of
New York (Delaware), as Delaware trustee, and the administrators named therein (Exhibit 4 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2003).

4.13 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Morgan Stanley Capital Trust IV dated as of April 21,
2003 among Morgan Stanley, as depositor, The Bank of New York, as property trustee, The Bank of
New York (Delaware), as Delaware Trustee and the administrators named therein (Exhibit 4 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2003).

4.14 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Morgan Stanley Capital Trust V dated as of July 16, 2003
among Morgan Stanley, as depositor, The Bank of New York, as property trustee, The Bank of New
York (Delaware), as Delaware trustee and the administrators named therein (Exhibit 4 to Morgan
Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2003).

4.15 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Morgan Stanley Capital Trust VI dated as of January 26,
2006 among Morgan Stanley, as depositor, The Bank of New York, as property trustee, The Bank of
New York (Delaware), as Delaware trustee and the administrators named therein (Exhibit 4 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2006).
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4.16 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Morgan Stanley Capital Trust VII dated as of October 12,
2006 among Morgan Stanley, as depositor, The Bank of New York, as property trustee, The Bank of
New York (Delaware), as Delaware trustee and the administrators named therein (Exhibit 4.3 to
Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 12, 2006).

4.17 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Morgan Stanley Capital Trust VIII dated as of April 26,
2007 among Morgan Stanley, as depositor, The Bank of New York, as property trustee, The Bank of
New York (Delaware), as Delaware trustee and the administrators named therein (Exhibit 4.3 to
Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 26, 2007).

4.18 Instruments defining the Rights of Security Holders, Including Indentures—Except as set forth in
Exhibits 4.1 through 4.17 above, the instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt
securities of Morgan Stanley and its subsidiaries are omitted pursuant to Section (b)(4)(iii) of
Item 601 of Regulation S-K. Morgan Stanley hereby agrees to furnish copies of these instruments to
the SEC upon request.

10.1 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of October 18, 2011 by and between Morgan
Stanley and State Street Bank and Trust Company (Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011).

10.2 Transaction Agreement dated as of April 21, 2011 between Morgan Stanley and Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 21,
2011).

10.3 Amended and Restated Investor Agreement dated as of June 30, 2011 by and between Morgan
Stanley and Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated June 30, 2011), as amended by Third Amendment, dated October 3, 2013
(Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2013).

10.4† Morgan Stanley 401(k) Plan, amended and restated as of January 1, 2013 (Exhibit 10.6 to Morgan
Stanley Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012).

10.5†* Amendment to Morgan Stanley 401(k) Plan, dated as of December 20, 2013.

10.6†* Amendment to Morgan Stanley 401(k) Savings Plan, dated as of December 20, 2013.

10.7† 1994 Omnibus Equity Plan as amended and restated (Exhibit 10.23 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2003) as amended by Amendment
(Exhibit 10.11 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2006).

10.8† Tax Deferred Equity Participation Plan as amended and restated as of November 26, 2007
(Exhibit 10.9 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2007).

10.9† Directors’ Equity Capital Accumulation Plan as amended and restated as of March 22, 2012
(Exhibit 10.2 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, 2012).

10.10† Select Employees’ Capital Accumulation Program as amended and restated as of May 7, 2008
(Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31,
2008).

10.11† Form of Term Sheet under the Select Employees’ Capital Accumulation Program (Exhibit 10.9 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2008).

10.12† Employees’ Equity Accumulation Plan as amended and restated as of November 26, 2007
(Exhibit 10.12 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2007).
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10.13† Employee Stock Purchase Plan as amended and restated as of February 1, 2009 (Exhibit 10.20 to
Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2008).

10.14† Morgan Stanley Supplemental Executive Retirement and Excess Plan, amended and restated effective
December 31, 2008 (Exhibit 10.2 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2009) as amended by Amendment (Exhibit 10.5 to Morgan Stanley’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009), Amendment (Exhibit 10.19 to
Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010) and
Amendment (Exhibit 10.3 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2011).

10.15† 1995 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan (Annex A to MSG’s Proxy Statement for its 1996 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders) as amended by Amendment (Exhibit 10.39 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2000), Amendment (Exhibit 10.5 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2005),
Amendment (Exhibit 10.3 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
February 28, 2006), Amendment (Exhibit 10.24 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2006) and Amendment (Exhibit 10.22 to Morgan Stanley’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2007).

10.16† Form of Equity Incentive Compensation Plan Award Certificate (Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2004).

10.17† Form of Management Committee Equity Award Certificate for Discretionary Retention Award of
Stock Units and Stock Options (Exhibit 10.30 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended November 30, 2006).

10.18† Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement under the Pre-Tax Incentive Program 2 (Exhibit 10.12 to
MSG’s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended November 30, 1996).

10.19† Key Employee Private Equity Recognition Plan (Exhibit 10.43 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2000).

10.20† Morgan Stanley Financial Advisor and Investment Representative Compensation Plan as amended
and restated as of November 26, 2007 (Exhibit 10.34 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2007).

10.21† Morgan Stanley UK Share Ownership Plan (Exhibit 4.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement
on Form S-8 (No. 333-146954)).

10.22† Supplementary Deed of Participation for the Morgan Stanley UK Share Ownership Plan, dated as of
November 5, 2009 (Exhibit 10.36 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2009).

10.23† Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2010, by and between Corporate
Services Support Corp. and James P. Gorman (Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010).

10.24† Agreement between Morgan Stanley and James P. Gorman, dated August 16, 2005, and amendment
dated December 17, 2008 (Exhibit 10.2 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2010).

10.25†* Amendment to Agreement between Morgan Stanley and James P. Gorman, effective as of
December 19, 2013.

10.26† Agreement between Morgan Stanley and Gregory J. Fleming, dated February 3, 2010 (Exhibit 10.5 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011).

10.27† Form of Restrictive Covenant Agreement (Exhibit 10 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated November 22, 2005).
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10.28† Morgan Stanley Performance Formula and Provisions (Exhibit 10.3 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2006).

10.29† Morgan Stanley Performance Formula and Provisions (Exhibit 10.2 to Morgan Stanley’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 14, 2013).

10.30† 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated as of March 21, 2013
(Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14, 2013).

10.31† Morgan Stanley 2006 Notional Leveraged Co-Investment Plan, as amended and restated as of
November 28, 2008 (Exhibit 10.47 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended November 30, 2008).

10.32† Form of Award Certificate under the 2006 Notional Leveraged Co-Investment Plan (Exhibit 10.7 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2008).

10.33† Morgan Stanley 2007 Notional Leveraged Co-Investment Plan, amended as of June 4, 2009
(Exhibit 10.6 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2009).

10.34† Form of Award Certificate under the 2007 Notional Leveraged Co-Investment Plan for Certain
Management Committee Members (Exhibit 10.8 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2008).

10.35† Governmental Service Amendment to Outstanding Stock Option and Stock Unit Awards (replacing
and superseding in its entirety Exhibit 10.3 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended May 31, 2007) (Exhibit 10.41 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2007).

10.36† Amendment to Outstanding Stock Option and Stock Unit Awards (Exhibit 10.53 to Morgan Stanley’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2008).

10.37† Morgan Stanley Compensation Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.54 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2008).

10.38† Form of Executive Waiver (Exhibit 10.55 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended November 30, 2008).

10.39† Form of Executive Letter Agreement (Exhibit 10.56 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2008).

10.40† Morgan Stanley 2009 Replacement Equity Incentive Compensation Plan for Morgan Stanley Smith
Barney Employees (Exhibit 4.2 to Morgan Stanley’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(No. 333-159504)).

10.41† Form of Award Certificate for Discretionary Retention Awards of Stock Units (Exhibit 10.1 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011).

10.42† Form of Award Certificate for Performance Stock Units (Exhibit 10.3 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011).

10.43† Form of Award Certificate for Special Discretionary Retention Awards of Stock Options
(Exhibit 10.4 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2011).

10.44† Morgan Stanley Schedule of Non-Employee Directors Annual Compensation, effective as of May 17,
2011 (Exhibit 10.59 to Morgan Stanley’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011).

10.45† Form of Award Certificate for Discretionary Retention Awards of Stock Units (Exhibit 10.1 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012).

10.46† Form of Award Certificate for Discretionary Retention Awards under the Morgan Stanley
Compensation Incentive Plan Deferred Bonus Program (Exhibit 10.2 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012).
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10.47† Form of Award Certificate for Performance Stock Units (Exhibit 10.3 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012).

10.48† Memorandum to Colm Kelleher Regarding Repatriation to London (Exhibit 10.4 to Morgan
Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012).

10.49† Morgan Stanley U.S. Tax Equalization Program (Exhibit 10.5 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012).

10.50† Change of Employment Status and Release Agreement between Morgan Stanley and Paul
J. Taubman, dated January 3, 2013 (Exhibit 10.1 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013).

10.51† Morgan Stanley UK Limited Alternative Retirement Plan, dated as of October 8, 2009 (Exhibit 10.2
to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013).

10.52† Form of Award Certificate for Discretionary Retention Awards under the Morgan Stanley
Compensation Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.3 to Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2013).

10.53† Form of Award Certificate for Discretionary Retention Awards of Stock Units (Exhibit 10.4 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013).

10.54† Form of Award Certificate for Discretionary Retention Awards of Stock Options (Exhibit 10.5 to
Morgan Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013).

10.55† Form of Award Certificate for Long-Term Incentive Program Awards (Exhibit 10.6 to Morgan
Stanley’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013).

12* Statement Re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Computation of Ratio of
Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends.

21* Subsidiaries of Morgan Stanley.

23.1* Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

24 Powers of Attorney (included on signature page).

31.1* Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2* Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32.1** Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

32.2** Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

101 Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition—December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, (ii) the Consolidated Statements
of Income—Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
(iii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income—Twelve Months Ended December 31,
2013, December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, (v) the
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Total Equity—Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2013,
December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
† Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this

Form 10-K pursuant to Item 15(b).
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